
Economic consequences of accounting


"It's not the economy anymore, stupid. It's the accounting." 

- See complete article, Browning, E.S. and Jonathan Weil. "Burden of Dobut: Stocks Take 
a Beating As Accounting Wories Spread Beyond Enron." The Wall Street Journal,
January 30, 2002, pp. A1. 
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Acknowledgement is hereby given to Professor G. Peter Wilson for his authorship 
of the following works incorporated into this slideshow:

   • The Five Challenges (slides 4-5)
   • "What Do Intel and Accountants Have in Common?"(slides 9-16)
   • A Conceptual Framework for Financial Accounting (slide 17)
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The reaction of Concord EFS stock to its announcement of lower expected 

earnings


Date Opening Price High Low Closing Price Volume 

Sept. 6, 2002 14.64 14.95 14.20 14.49 29,941,300 

Sept. 5, 2002 12.90 15.00 12.60 14.30 91,129,100 

Sept. 4, 2002 18.85 19.48 18.10 18.88 20,473,400 

Sept. 3, 2002 19.80 20.18 19.00 19.56 10,267,600 

Aug. 30, 2002 20.71 21.20 20.31 20.41 5,457,800 

Data Source: Yahoo! Finance 
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What is our course objective?


Ź To become intelligent users of accounting information 

Ź Learn the language and techniques 

Ź Go beyond bookkeeping and computation 

• Use a common framework to conceptualize issues 

Ź What is not our objective 

• to train you to be an accountant or bookkeeper
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The five challenges


Ź	 Record keeping and reporting 

•	 As a preparer, having determined the numbers you want to 
record for an economic event, how do you record them?  How 
does it affect accounting reports? 

•	 As a user, given the reported numbers, do I know how they 
were computed? 

Ź Computation 

•	 As a preparer, having chosen the accounting method to 
measure an event, how do I compute the number reported in 1? 

•	 As a user, knowing the procedures used by management, and 
the information necessary to execute them, how would you 
compute them yourself? 
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The five challenges


Ź	 Judgement 

•	 As a preparer, how do I choose an accounting procedure and exercise 
my judgement concerning measurement, recognition, and disclosure? 

• As a user, how do I judge the usefulness of the reported numbers? 

Ź	 Usage 

•	 As a preparer, how do I learn about the decisions that will be 
influenced by the reported numbers? 

•	 As a user, how can the reported numbers help me make a more 
informed decision? 

Ź Search 

•	 Where do you locate the information needed for 1-4. 
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What is our strategy to meet this objetive?

Cases and class discussion


Ź Judgment challenge 

Ź Application of other challenges 

Ź Learning to communicate ideas 

Ź Learning from each other 

Ź Learning through discovery 
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What is our startegy to meet this objective?

Incentives


Ź Learning useful skills 

• Graded assignments 

• Graded class participation 

• Warm and cold calling
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What is “good” participation?


Ź Quality, not quantity.


Ź Analyzing and discussing course material.


Ź Questioning the analysis of others.


Ź Seeking clarification.


Ź Contrasting issues within other settings, courses, and / 

or other countries.


Ź Changing the direction of discussion. 

Ź Summarizing / synthesizing. 

Ź Adherence to guidelines for professional conduct. 
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What do Intel and accountants have in common?


Ź	 Intel produces microprocessors, chipsets and other 

semiconductor components to meet the diverse needs of 

their customers. 

Ź What do accountants produce and who are their 

customers? 
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What do Intel and accountants have in common?


Ź	 Intel’s customers use microprocessors as the “brain” of 

their computers. 

Ź What do accountants’ customers do with accounting 

information? 
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What do Intel and accountants have in common?


Ź	 Intel’s operating inputs include materials, technology 

and capital. 

Ź	 What are the inputs to the accounting process? 
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What do Intel and accountants have in common?


Ź	 Intel’s product designs depend on its customers’ needs, 

competition, availability of inputs and technological 

constraints. 

Ź What factors influence the design of accountants’ 

products? 
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What do Intel and accountants have in common?


Ź Intel’s customers would prefer microprocessors that: 

• Execute 1 teraflop per second 

• Run on ambient solar energy 

• Can be worn discretely as jewelry 

• Are completely bug-free 

• Support all software and operating systems 

• Are given away to anyone who wants them 

Ź Why don’t they get all of these? 
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What do Intel and accountants have in common?


Ź	 What kind of information would accountants’ customers 

like? 

Ź	 Why don’t they get it? 
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What do Intel and accountants have in common?


Ź	 The quality of Intel’s products is based on some of the 

following factors: 

•	 Reliability and dependability (CPU must know how 

to multiply) 

•	 Compatibility with existing software 


Ź	 What factors can be used to determine the quality of the 

products accountants produce? 
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What do Intel and accountants have in common?


Ź Intel’s customers assess quality based on: 

• Intel’s reputation 

• Independent ratings 

• Software and hardware engineers’ opinions 

• Customers’ own judgment 

Ź How do accountants’ customers assess the quality of 

accounting information? 
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A conceptual framework for financial accounting


Economic Activity 

Accounting Decisions Reported Numbers 

User’s 

Decisions 

Accounting 

Quality 

Assessment 

Performance 

Assessment 

Preparers’ Domain Users’ Domain 
Outside reporting entity 

Economic Outcomes 

Economic Consequences 

Inside reporting entity 
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15.514 Summer 2003 

SESSION 1 

OVERVIEW AND INTRODUCTION - SETTING THE STAGE AND THE 

COURSE FRAMEWORK 

Objectives 

1. Build a working relationship: What are our responsibilities? 

2. Answer the following: What do accountants do and why is it important? 

3. Understand the course objective and challenges, and our strategy to meet them 

4. Begin to gain an understanding of the course framework 

5. Understand how individual events affect financial statements 

Reading Assignment 

Pratt: Chapters 1 & 2 

Class Preparation Questions 

None. 

Graded Assignment 

None 

Optional Problems 

P2-1, P2-3, P2-4, P2-9 

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

18
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Objectives and Game Plan


- Understand some key concepts of Financial Accounting 

- Appreciate the differences between cash basis and 
accrual accounting 

- Develop a mental model for classifying types of 
accruals 

- Practice the basic bookkeeping model 

15.514 2003 
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Important Financial Accounting Concepts


- Conservatism: not the same as pessimism 
- Materiality: Benefit/cost trade-off 
- Consistency: Contrast with uniformity 
- Comparability 
- Verifiability 
- Revenue Recognition 
- Matching Principle: Matching Efforts (costs) with Benefits 

(revenue) 

•	 Further, we will make assumptions about the Economic Entity, 
its ability to survive as a Going Concern, and the Fiscal Period 
(which need not be the calendar year) 

15.514 2003 

Session 2 www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

20
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Key Conflict: Relevance v. Reliability


- Example: How should we value one-of-a-kind assets, 
like one of Intel’s wafer fabrication plants? 
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Key Conflict: Relevance v. Reliability


- Example: How to value one-of-a-kind assets? 

•	 Financial accounting stresses Objectivity: Verifiable 
and reliable information. 

•	 Does not mean accounting is “cut and dried.”


• Still ample room for managerial judgment when 

estimating future effects under “objective rules.”
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The Balance Sheet Equation


Assets = Liabilities + Shareholders’ Equity


Assets - Liabilities = Shareholders’ Equity

“own” “owe” “owners’ share of the business” 

(book value, residual claim) 
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Accounting in a Single-Period Word is “Easy”


- Cash  + Cash


Invested Returned


0 	 1


- Example: Shipping Expeditions in the 15th Century 
•	 Ship sold at end of voyage: finite project life


•	 No information available until ship returns 
•	 Income is simply difference between cash out and 

cash in 
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Accounting in a Multiperiod World is “Difficult”


Cash Invested


0 1 2 3 4 5 6 … 

Cash Returned 

- No pre-determined end to firm's life - going concern 
- Cash invested and generated at multiple points in time 
- Subsequent actions affected by prior results - feedback 
- Monitoring by external investors: evaluate investment, retain/reward 

management 
- Accrual accounting: focus on measuring performance in a given time 

period, independent of cash effects. 
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Principals of Accrual Accounting


- An attempt to measure firm performance regardless of when cash 
is exchanged 

- Revenue Recognition: 
•	 Earnings process substantially complete 
•	 Cash collection reasonably assured 

- The Matching Principle for Expenses: 
•	 Match efforts to the benefits generated 
•	 Capitalize expenditures that will benefit future periods, 

expense as benefits are realized 
•	 Recognize liabilities when efforts benefiting the current period 

require cash payment in the future 
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Cash Collection v. Revenue Recognition


Prior Period Current Period Subsequent Period 

Cash received + Cash (A) = 
concurrent + Revenue (SE) � 
with earning Income Statement 
revenue 

Cash received + Cash (A) = 0 = 
before earning + Deferred - Deferred Revenue (L) 
revenue Revenue (L) + Revenue (SE) � 

Income Statement 

Cash received + Accounts Receivable (A) = + Cash (A) 
after + Revenue (SE) � - A/R (A)  = 0 
earning Income Statement 
revenue 

Note: Deferred Revenue can also be called Advances from Customers.  Both names signify 
that cash has been received for a service or product that hasn't been delivered. 
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Cash Payment v Expense Recognition


Prior Period Current Period Subsequent Period 

Cash paid 
concurrent with 
using resource to 
generate revenue 

- Cash (-A)  = 
+ Expense (-SE) � 

Income Statement 

Cash paid - Cash (-A) - Productive Asset (-A) = 
before + Productive + Expense (-SE) � 
using resource to Asset (A) = 0 Income Statement 
generate revenue 

Cash paid 0 = - Cash (-A) = 
after + Accrued Liability (L) - - Accrued 
using resource to + Expense (-SE) � Liability (-L) 
generate revenue Income Statement 

Note: 	 The "Productive Asset" could be inventory, Prepaid Insurance, PP&E, etc.  In the case of 
PP&E, we would reduce the value of the asset through the contra-asset Accumulated 
Depreciation. The"Accrued Liability" could be Accounts Payable, Accrued Wage Expense, 
Interest Payable, etc 
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Temporary v Permanent Accounts


- Permanent Accounts: 
•	 Appear on the Balance Sheet 
•	 Start each period with the ending balance from the 

prior period 

- Temporary Accounts: 
•	 Appear on the Income Statement

•	 Start each period with a balance of $0 
• Are closed at the end of the period to the Income 


Summary to compute Net Income for the period
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Handling Temporary Accounts in the Balance Sheet 

Equation (BSE) Format


Net Income = Revenues - Expenses + Gains - Losses


End. Ret. Earn. = Beg. Ret. Earn. + NI - Div 

Therefore... 
- Revenues and Gains ultimately Increase Ret. Earn. 
- Expenses and Losses ultimately Decrease Ret. Earn. 
- We’ll record Income Statement components directly to the 

Permanent Account, Retained Earnings, with a note about the 
reason and recognize that this is a short-cut around the use of 
Temporary Accounts 
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Exercise E5-18:  Peters Company


See Example E4-19: Peters Company on pages 163-4 in the course textbook. �
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1         

Exercise E5-18:  Peters Company, Year 1


Cash + AR + PPRent +  INV = AP + WgsPble +  CC + RE 

BB 

Total Assets = Liab + SE = 
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1               

Exercise E5-18:  Peters Company, Year 2


Cash + AR + PPRent +  INV = AP + WgsPble +  CC + RE 

BB 

Balance 
Sheet 

26 4 6 5 10 4 24 3 
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Exercise E5-18:  Peters Company (continued)


Performance Measure Year 1 Year 2 Total 

Net Income…………… 

Net Cash Flow from 

Operations……………. 
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Key Points


- Relevance of Accounting Measures depends on the 
decision context 

- Most relevant measures are sometimes the least reliable: 
a major trade-off in accounting 

- Accrual Accounting attempts to measure performance, 
regardless of when cash is affected 
•	 Tables on slides 8 and 9 provide a framework for 

thinking about the accrual process 
-� Balance Sheet Equation (BSE) as a tool for 

understanding events' impacts on the Financial 
Statements 
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15.514 Summer 2003 

SESSION 2 

PRINCIPLES OF ACCRUAL ACCOUNTING 

Objectives 

1. Understand how accrual accounting differs from a cash basis 

2. Develop a mental model for classifying types of accounting accruals 

3. Understand how accruals affect the financial statement  

4. Become familiar with the basic bookkeeping model that illustrates how record keeping       

impacts the financials 

5. Understand the accounting cycle: (a) recording events during the accounting period, 

(b) end-of-period adjustments, (c) closing entries, (d) financial statement preparation. 

Reading Assignment 

Pratt: Chapters 3 & 4 

Class Preparation Questions 

1. How do the Income Statement and the Balance Sheet relate to one another? 

2. What does a firm's ending balance of Retained Earnings represent? In Figure 4-11 on 

p. 117 of Pratt, why does Net Income appear on both the Income Statement AND the 

Statement of Retained Earnings? Why does Ending Retained Earnings Balance not equal 

Ending Cash Balance on the Balance Sheet? 

3. How do you determine what fiscal period a firm is using? Why would companies use 

something other than calendar year as a fiscal period? 

4. From a financial reporting perspective, what's the difference between consistency and 

uniformity? Why do U.S. accounting principles require the former but not the latter? 

5. What is the difference between capitalizing and expensing a cost? 

6. How is recognizing depreciation for PP&E an example of the Matching Principle? 

7. Pratt E4-19 (we will do this in class) 

Graded Assignment 

None. 

Optional Problems 

P3-9, ID3-4, E4-5, E4-16, P4-14 
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15.514 Summer 2003 

SESSION 3 

ELEMENTS OF AN ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL RATIOS 

Objectives 

1. 	 Become familiar with the main parts of an annual report: (a) CEO's letter, (b) description of business 

activity, (c) management discussion and analysis, (d) audit report, (e) financial statements, (f) 

description of accounting procedures, (g) footnotes. 

2. 	 Understand the purposes of the four financial statements: (a) balance sheet, (b) income statement, (c) 

statement of cash flows, and (d) statement of owners’ equity. 

3. 	 Become familiar with the types of economic activity that are associated with common 

financial-statement line items, and thus the reasons why users of financial reports might find these 

items useful. 

4. 	 Understand the distinction between recognition and disclosure of information. 

5. 	 Begin to understand commonly-used financial ratios. 

Reading Assignment 

Pratt: Chapters 3 & 5 

Intel Annual Report 


Class Preparation Questions 

1.	 What was Intel’s Net Income for 2000-2002?  What was Intel’s EBIT (Earnings before Income 

Taxes) in each year?  EBITDA (Earnings before Income Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization)? 

2. 	 Compute Intel's Profit Margin (Net Income / Sales) for 2000-2002. 

3.	 Compute Intel’s Return on Equity for 2002. How does it compare to other firms in Intel’s industry? 

4.	 Compute Intel’s Asset Turnover for 2002. How does it compare to other firms in Intel’s industry? 

5. 	 Compute the ratio of Intel’s stock price to its owner's equity-per-share outstanding. This is the 

“market-to-book” ratio. Why are they different? How would this ratio compare to market-to-book 

ratio of the average firm in the steel industry? 

6.	 Compute Intel's Current Ratio for year-end 2001 and 2002. What proportion of Intel's total assets is 

represented by cash and marketable securities? (Relevant B/S accounts: Cash and Cash Equivalents, 

Short-term Investments, Trading Assets, Long-term Investments) 

7. 	 Compute Intel's Gross Margin Ratio [(Sales - Cost of Sales) / Sales] for the years 2000-2002. 

Comment on the trend. What economic and strategic factors might contribute to changes in this ratio 

over time? What types of companies would tend to have a high gross margin ratio? 

8. 	 Has Intel paid dividends over the past three years? How much? Why would Intel hold so much cash 

rather than, say, paying out higher dividends to its shareholders? 

9.	 Compute Intel's Long-Term-Debt-to-Equity Ratio for 2000-2002. What benchmarks might you use to 

judge whether a firm's D/E ratio is high or low? 

10. How much cash has Intel spent each of the last 3 years for Property, Plant, and Equipment? How 

quickly does Intel depreciate PP&E? (See the ' Accounting Policies note.) How does depreciating 

PP&E affect Intel's Income Statement, Balance Sheet, and Statement of Cash Flows? 

11. Calculate the average age of outstanding accounts receivable for the past two years. 

Graded Assignment 

Problem Set 1 

Optional Problems 

E5-13, P5-13, ID5-1, ID5-2, ID5-11 
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Why Do We Care About Revenue Recognition?


- Revenue has BIG impact on bottom-line profitability ==> 
managers may be tempted to manage revenue 

- Statistical Evidence: over 40% of SEC enforcement actions on 
accounting issues deal with Revenue Recognition 

- Anecdotal Evidence: Recent experience of Bristol-Myers 
•	 In another setback for the beleaguered drug maker, Bristol-

Myers Squibb Co. confirmed that the Securities and Exchange
Commission has opened an inquiry into whether it improperly
inflated revenue last year by as much as $1 billion through use
of sales incentives...Drug makers, like many other
manufacturers, can boost near-term sales by extending lower 
prices to wholesalers, encouraging them to load up. But such
"channel-stuffing" hurts later sales.    --from WSJ, 7/12/2002 
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Criteria For Revenue Recognition 


- Under accrual accounting, a firm recognizes revenue when it has: 

- Performed all, or a substantial portion of, the services to be 
provided. 

- Incurred a substantial majority of the costs, and the remaining 
costs can be reasonably estimated. 

- Received either cash, a receivable, or some other asset for which 
• a reasonably precise value can be measured 
• collectibility is reasonably assured. 
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Importance Of Accounts Receivables


Receivables 
Industry Total Assets 
Eating Places 1.6% 
Family Clothing Stores (The GAP) 3.0 
Race Track Operations 3.1 
Grocery Stores 4.9 
Intel 8.6 
Semiconductors 11.3 
Advertising Agencies 42.7 
Trans. Freight/Cargo 43.1 
Computer Software Wholesale 45.5 
Overall Median 13.0% 

Source: 5,933 industrial firms from 2000 Global Vantage
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Allowance For Bad Debts (Uncollectibles) 


- Methods 
• Direct Method 

• Percentage of Sales 
• Aging 

- How might a firm’s choice of method evolve over 
time? 

15.514 2003 

Session 4 www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

41
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



I/S and B/S Relationships


Accounts Receivable (A) - Allowance for doubtful 
Accounts (XA) 

Beginning Balance Beginning Balance 

+ Credit Sales + Amounts Recorded as Bad 
Debt Expense 

- Cash Collected 

- Amounts Written Off                      - Amounts Written Off 

+ Reinstatements + Reinstatements 

= Ending Balance = Ending Balance 

15.514 2003 
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Parallels Between Bad Debt And Other Accrued Expenses


Cash + A/R - ADA Acc. 
= Liab. 

Ret. 
+ Earn 

Accrue 
Expense 

50 K (50)K 

Pay Liability (50)K (50)K 

Accrue Bad 
Debts 

50 K (50)K 

Write Off 
Accounts 

(50)K (50)K 

15.514 2003 
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Problem E6-7


 See Problem E6-7 on pages 272-3 of the course textbook. 
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Problem E6-7 (Cont’d)


AR -ADA  
 L + CC + RE 

BB 

Sales 

Write-Off 

Bad Debt 
Expense


EB 

15.514 2003 

Session 4 www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

45
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Allowance For Returns


- If customer has the right to return the product, the seller must
estimate the dollar value of returns. 

- Revenue is reported net of the amount expected to be returned. 
- Typically, seller sets up a contra-asset account, Allowance for 

Returns: 
•	 Analogous to Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
•	 When return actually occurs, reduce both Allowance and face

value of Accounts Receivable (or Cash) by the invoice 
amount. 

•	 Return has no effect on Net Income, nor on Net Assets, just as
Write-off of Uncollectible has no effect on these amounts. 

•	 BSE: AR - Allowance for Returns = RE 
-	 Intel takes a slightly different approach: Deferred Income 

Liability. 

15.514 2003 
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Deferred Income: An Example


Shipments on 3/1 to OEMs and Distributors: 
Total Billings $ 350,000 
Direct to OEMs 280,000 
To Distributors (PP) 70,000 

COGS 

Direct to OEMs 

To Distributors (PP) 


$ 90,000 
72,000 
18,000 

•	 Return / Price Protection expires for $35K of sales on 3/31 
•	 Invoice Price is reduced from $35K to $25K on the remainder 

of shipment on 4/15 

15.514 2003 
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Deferred Income: An Example


AR + INV = Deferred Inc + RE 

OEM sales 

Distrib. Sales 

PP Expires 
for $35K 

PP Applies

for 35K
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Reverse Engineering: How Much Cash Did Intel 

Collect From Customers In 2002?


Reverse Engineering process: 
- Identify Relevant Balance Sheet Accounts: A/R, Allowance for 

Doubtful Accounts, Deferred Income 
- Identify the activities that affect these accounts: 

•	 Recognizing sales revenue as A/R 
•	 Recognizing bad debt expense 
•	 Writing off uncollectible accounts 
• Invoicing products that affect the Deferred Income Liability 

- Obtain amounts from the Financial Statements, notes, other 
•	 i.e., Intel’s Bad Debt Expense ($10M) and Write-offs ($21) are 

disclosed in its 10-K report filed with the SEC, but not in the 
annual report. 

- Set up BSE template and “plug” the remaining numbers 

15.514 2003 
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Determining Intel’s Cash Collections


Cash +AR -ADA +OA =Def Inc +RE 

Begin 
Balance 2,675 68 418 
Sales 
Revenue 

Bad Debt 
Expense 

Write-
Offs 

Change in 
Def Inc 

Cash 
Collected 

End 
Balance 2,631 57 475 

15.514 2003 
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Summary Points


-� Criteria for recognizing revenue 
•	 Collectibility: Match expected bad debts to the period in 

which the sales occur 
�	 Distinguish between Bad Debt Expense and Write-Offs 
� Methods for estimating Bad Debts / Uncollectible 

Accounts 

•	 Right of Return: match expected returns to the sales 
period, or more conservatively, defer revenue 
recognition until return protection / price protection ends. 

-� Reverse Engineering: infer the activities that underlie a 
firm’s reported financial results 

15.514 2003 
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15.514 	Summer 2003 

SESSION 4 
REVENUE RECOGNITION AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Objectives 
1. Discuss the criteria for revenue recognition under accrual accounting: a firm 

recognizes revenue when it is deemed to be a) earned and b) collectible. 
2. 	 Introduce the different types of contra-asset accounts related to Accounts 

Receivable: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts ("ADA"), Allowance for Returns, 
and Deferred Income Liability. 

3. 	 Understand the three alternative methods used to calculate the Allowance for 
Doubtful Accounts: direct method, percentage of sales, and aging. 

4. 	 Work on a detailed example: reverse engineering Intel's cash collections in 2001. 

Reading Assignment 
Pratt: 	 Chapter 6; Review Chapter 3, especially pp. 83 - 85 “The principles of 

matching and revenue recognition”, Chapter 4, p. 126 “Unearned (Deferred) 
Revenues” 

Intel: 	 “Revenue Recognition,” p. 26, and the line “Deferred Income on Shipments to 
Distributors” in the balance sheet 

Class Preparation Questions 
1. 	 What are the criteria necessary to recognize revenue? 
2. Under what circumstances would managers have the incentive to manipulate the 
timing of revenue recognition?  How would they do it?  What risks are involved? 
3. Instead of using an ADA (Allowance for Doubtful Accounts) account, why can’t 
we just subtract estimated future write-offs from the Accounts Receivable? 
4. 	 Pratt, problem E6-7 
5. 	 What is Intel’s revenue recognition policy? 
6. How would you go about calculating Intel’s cash collections in 2002?  (Hint: 
preview the class lecture notes). 

Graded Assignment
 None 

Optional Problems 
P6-3, P6-4, P6-10 
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Session 5


- Announcements 

- Intel Cash Collections 

- Circuit City 

15.514 2003
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Reverse Engineering: How Much Cash Did Intel 


Collect From Customers In 2002?


Reverse Engineering process: 


Identify Relevant Balance Sheet Accounts: A/R, Allowance for 
Doubtful Accounts, Deferred Income 

Identify the activities that affect these accounts: 

•	 Recognizing sales revenue as A/R 


•	 Recognizing bad debt expense 

•	 Writing off uncollectible accounts 


• Invoicing products that affect the Deferred Income Liability 

Obtain amounts from the Financial Statements, notes, other 

•	 i.e., Intel’s Bad Debt Expense ($10M) and Write-offs ($21) are 
disclosed in its 10-K report filed with the SEC, but not in the 
annual report. 

- Set up BSE template and “plug” the remaining numbers 
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Determining Intel’s Cash Collections


Cash +AR -ADA +OA =Def Inc +RE 

Begin 

Balance 2,675 68 418 

Sales 

Revenue 26,764 26,764 

Bad Debt 

Expense 10 -10 

Write-

Offs -21 -21 

Change in 

Def Inc 
115 

-58 

115 

-58 

Cash 

Collected 26,902 -26,902 

End 

Balance 2,631 57 475 
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Summary Points


-	 Criteria for recognizing revenue 

•	 Collectibility: Match expected bad debts to the period in 

which the sales occur 

�	 Distinguish between Bad Debt Expense and Write-Offs 

� Methods for estimating Bad Debts / Uncollectible 

Accounts 

•	 Right of Return: match expected returns to the sales 

period, or more conservatively, defer revenue 

recognition until return protection / price protection ends. 

-	 Reverse Engineering: infer the activities that underlie a 

firm’s reported financial results 

15.514 2003 

Session 5 

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

56
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



15.514 Summer 2003 

SESSION 5 

REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Objectives 
1.	 Reinforce and extend your understanding of revenue recognition. 

2.	 Illustrate how accounting numbers can influence the operating decisions they 
reflect. 

Reading Assignment 
CP: Circuit City Stores, Inc. (A) 

Class Preparation Questions 

In addition to the two questions at the back of Circuit Cities (CC), answer the 

following:


1.	 Show the BSE (Balance Sheet Equation) effects of the following events under the 
3 accounting alternatives described on pp. 2 and 3. 

•	 On 1/1/90, CC sells a stereo for $1,000 cash. Cost of inventory is $900. 
Customer also pays $100 cash for 2-year warranty coverage, which CC 

expects to require $20 in parts and labor over that period (through 12/31/91). 

•	 12/90, the customer brings the stereo in for inspection.  Actual cost to CC is 
$8. 

•	 12/91, the customer brings the stereo in again; actual cost to CC is $15. 

2.	 Compare yearly and total Net Income (i.e., for 1990 + 1991) of the scenario posed 
above under the three accounting treatments. 

3.	 How will Circuit City's financial statements be affected if the FASB requires 
them to change the accounting treatment for extended warranty and product 
maintenance contracts? What additional information or assumptions would you 

need to estimate the dollar impact of this change? 
4.	 As a user (lender, investor) of CC's financial statements, how would you prefer 

they account for extended warranty contracts? Why? 

Graded Assignment
      Problem Set 2 – Circuit City 

Optional Problems 
See Session 4 
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Accounting for inventory


Objectives


!	 Understand three accounting decisions 
< Product Costing (managerial accounting) 
< Cost-flows from inventory to cogs 
< Valuation adjustments (after midterms) 

!	 Begin to understand the related 
< Alternative accounting rules (focus on LIFO and FIFO) 
< Reporting consequences 
< Terms and concepts 
< Computations 
< Tax effects


15.514 Summer 2003 
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Accounting for inventory


The “ins” and “outs” of inventory accounting


!	 Product Costing Decision: 

    What costs flow into each product's inventory account? 

! Cost Flow & Valuation Decisions


 When are costs transferred from the Balance Sheet to the 
Income Statement? 
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Accounting for inventory


Freight in 

Goods
Beginning 
available for Ending

Inventory inventory sale 

Cost of
Purchases goods sold 

The “ins” of  inventory The “outs” of  inventory 

accounting accounting 
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Accounting for inventory


15.514 Summer 2003
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Accounting for inventory


Do we need physical flow to dictate cost flow?


! Circuit City, Inc. vs. CarMax
 (Retail operations) Auto Superstore 

15.514 Summer 2003
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Accounting for inventory


Alternatives

 Advantages Disadvantages 

Specific identification 

First-In,First Out (FIFO) 

Last-In,First Out (LIFO) 

Average Cost 
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Accounting for inventory


A Comparison of LIFO and FIFO


Income Balance

Statement Sheet


LIFO


FIFO
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Accounting For Inventory


Cost of goods sold and ending inventory: LIFO vs.  FIFO


                                                   Product 1 
Year 1 Year 2 

Units at start of year
Units produced  
Units available for sale  

0 
7@$8 
7@$8 

4@$8 
5@$10     

9 
Units sold  3@$8 4 
Units at end of year  4@$8 5 

In year 2.... 

LIFO cogs 
LIFO ei

4x$10 
             1x$10 + 4x$8  

= 
= 

$40 
$42 

LIFO cogs + ei = $82 

FIFO cogs 
FIFO ei

4x$8 
5x$10 

= 
= 

$32 
$50 

FIFO cogs + ei = $82 
15.514 Summer 2003 
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Accounting for inventory


BSE entries 
! 

 32 BB
Inputs for product 1 purchased for cash, year 2

      Cash + Inventory  = L + E
 -50 +50 

! 4 units sold for $20 each in cash.  LIFO cost used for matching 

Cash + Inventory  = L + RE
 80 = 80 Note: profit  = $40

 - 40 = - 40  EInv, yr. 2  = $42 

! 4 units sold for $20 each in cash,  but FIFO used for matching 

Cash   + Inventory  = L + RE 
80 = 80 Note: profit  = $48

 -32 = - 32  EInv,yr.  2 =  $50 
15.514 Summer 2003 
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Accounting for inventory


LIFO vs.  FIFO over time 
! Different “cost layers” of inventory 

LIFO FIFO
 1@$10 5@10
 4@$8

 Cumulative difference: EInvFIFO- EInvLIFO = “LIFO Reserve”pretax 

! Under increasing input prices, 

EInvLIFO #  EInvFIFO 
Year 2: $42 $50


              Are FIFO firms’ inventories more valuable?
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Accounting for inventory


LIFO vs.  FIFO over time


!	 Under increasing input prices and continuous buildup of cost 
layers, 

Gross profitLIFO #  Gross profitFIFO

   Year 2:  $40                               $48


 Are FIFO firms more profitable?
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Accounting for inventory


LIFO vs.  FIFO over time


! Inventory turnover: units sold per average units in inventory 

< Based on physical units :  4/[(4+5)/2)]  = 0.89 
< Based on FIFO $:                32/[(32+50)/2] = 0.78 
< Based on LIFO $:                40/[(32+42)/2] = 1.08 

! Under increasing input prices and continuous buildup of cost 
layers,

 ITOLIFO $  ITOFIFO


       Year 2:  1.08  0.78

 Are LIFO firms more efficient? 
15.514 Summer 2003 
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Inventory Turnover by Industry 
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Accounting for inventory


Comparability

 EInvFIFO = BInvFIFO + Inputs - COGSFIFO

 EInvLIFO = BInvLIFO + Inputs - COGSLIFO 

The amount of input does not depend upon the choice of LIFO/FIFO.

 EInvFIFO - EInvLIFO = BInvFIFO - BInvLIFO

 + COGSLIFO - COGSFIFO 

Change in LIFO Reserve = COGSLIFO-COGSFIFO 

The change in LIFO Reserve tells us the difference in cost between 
LIFO and FIFO. 
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---

U.S. Steel
 

Statement of Operations (in millions) 2001 
Revenues and other income: 

Revenues $6,286 
Income (loss) from investees 64 
Net gains on disposal of assets 22 
Other income 3 
Total revenues and other income 6,375 

Costs and expenses: 
Cost of revenues 6,091 
SG&A expenses (credits) 92 
Depreciation, depletion, and amort. 344 

Taxes other than income taxes 253 
Total costs and expenses 6,780 
Income (loss) from operations (405) 

2000 

$6,090 
(8) 
46 
4 

6,132 

5,656 
(223) 

360 
235 

6,028 
104 

1999 

$5,536 
(89) 

21 
2 

5,470 

5,084 
(283) 

304 
215 

5,320 
150 

Balance Sheet (in millions), December 31 
Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables, less allowance for doubtful 
accounts (of $165 and $57) 


Receivables subject to a security interest 

Receivables from Marathon 

Inventories 

Deferred income tax benefits 

Other current assets 


Total current assets 

2001 

$147 
802 

28 
870 
216 
10 

2,073 

2000 

$219 
625 

350 
366 
946 
201 
10 

2,717 

- Courtesy of U.S. Steel, 2001 Annual Report 
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U.S. Steel
 

Inventories are carried at lower of cost or market on a worldwide basis. 
Cost of inventories is determined primarily under the last-in, first-out 
(LIFO) method. 

December 31, in millions 2001 2000 
Inventories 
Raw materials $184 $214 
Semi-finished products 388 429 
Finished products 202 210 
Supplies and sundry items 96 93 

TOTAL 870 946 

Current acquisition costs were estimated to exceed the above inventory 

million in 2000. 
values at December 31 by approximately $410 million in 2001 and $380 

- Courtesy of U.S. Steel, 2001 Annual Report 
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Accounting for inventory


Intel ITO                   
2001 

USX ITO 
2001 

           Adj. USX ITO 
2001 

COGS  = 13,487 COGS = “FIFO”  COGS = 6,061 

Beg Inv =  2,241 964 “FIFO”  Beg Inv =  1,326=964+380 

End Inv =  2,253 870 “FIFO” End Inv = 1,280 =870+410 

6,091 

               Beg Inv =  

              End Inv =  

ITO  = 6.0 ITO = 6.7 “FIFO” ITO = 4.7
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Accounting for inventory


!	 Suppose no inventory is acquired at start of year 2 (sales = 4) 

< FIFO COGS = 4 x $8 = $32 (as before)

< LIFO COGS = 4 x $8  = $32 (same)


!	 Liquidating LIFO layers, if multiple layers exist 
< Decrease LIFO COGS (possibly less than FIFO) 
< Increase profitability 
< Decrease LIFO reserve 
< Decrease turnover ratio 

!	 Earnings manipulation? 

15.514 Summer 2003 

Session 6 

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

75
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Accounting for inventory: Tax considerations


!	 LIFO conformity rule: if a firm uses LIFO for tax 
purposes, it must also use LIFO for financial reporting 
purposes 

<	 Choice should minimize the present value of tax

payments


<	 Given the tax effects, what types of firms would you 
expect to choose each inventory method? 

15.514 Summer 2003 

Session 6 

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

76
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Summary 


!	 Matching principle requires a “cost flow” assumption, 
leading to different accounting methods ( e.g. LIFO/FIFO) 

!	 Computation/record-keeping trivial, but implications not: 
LIFO and FIFO produce temporary differences in accounting 
numbers. 

!	 No accounting method is innately superior: choice depends 
upon business environment, incentives of users, possibility of 
manipulation, etc. 

!	 Disclosures available to make numbers comparable across 
firms. 

Session 6 
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15.514 Summer 2003 

SESSION 6 

ACCOUNTING FOR INVENTORY AND COGS 

Objectives 

1.	 Understand three decisions related to accounting for inventory: 

a.	 Product Costing (managerial accounting) 

b.	 Cost-flows from inventory to Cost of Goods Sold 

c.	 Valuation adjustments (after midterms) 

2.	 Begin to understand these related issues: 

a. Alternative accounting rules (focus on LIFO and FIFO) 

b Reporting consequences 

c.	 Terms and concepts 

d.	 Computations 

e.	 Tax effects 

Reading Assignment 

Pratt: Chapter 7 

Intel: Inventory 

CP:  Accounting for Manufacturing Companies, Understanding LIFO / FIFO 


Class Preparation Questions 

1.	 What are the four major alternatives for calculating cost-flow (flow of value from 

inventory to COGS)?  How do these relate (if at all) to the physical flow of 

products sold? 

2. When costs are increasing over time, which assumption (LIFO or FIFO) results in 

higher reported Net Income?  In a higher reported value for Inventory on the Balance 

Sheet? 

3.	 What does “LIFO Reserve” represent?  What causes it to increase or decrease? 

4.	 Does Intel use LIFO or FIFO?  Where would you find this information? 

5.	 Calculate Intel’s 2001 Inventory Turnover ratio. 

Graded Assignment 

None 

Optional Problems 

P7-4, P7-6, P7-9 
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Accounting for long-lived assets


!	 Understand more applications of the matching principle,
specifically, the allocation of historical costs to future 
revenues 

!	 Recognize the common aspects of the record keeping & 
reporting challenge that are shared by many balance sheet 
items related to these decisions. 

!	 Continue to learn how to reverse engineer related accounting 
entries from financial statement information. 

!	 Begin to understand and appreciate the Statement of Cash 
Flows. 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Accounting for long-lived assets


Cash 
Disbursement 

Matching Principle 

B/S: I/S:

Capitalize Expense 

amount as part of amount as 
inventory (e.g., COGS 
manufacturing
overhead) 

amount as 
fixed asset 
(PPE) 

B/S:
Capitalize

amount as 
depreciation 

Revenue recognized, 
triggering matching 

I/S:
Expense 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Issues that relate to fixed assets


! What is the acquisition cost?


! How much is the salvage value?


! What is the expected useful service life?


! What pattern of depreciation should be used to allocate

expense over the useful life?


15.514 Summer 2003 
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Determining acquisition cost


!	 What is given up to obtain the asset? 

<	 Purchased Assets: Purchase price plus cost to prepare the 
asset for use (installation, transport) 
–	 Case 1:  Cash 
–	 Case 2:  Financing (down payment plus loan/note) 
–	 Case 3:  Other assets (Cash plus trade-in) 

< Self-Constructed Assets 
–	 Direct costs of construction 
–	 Financing costs (interest on funds borrowed to finance 

construction) 
15.514 Summer 2003 
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Managerial discretion and long-lived assets


! Determining useful life: what factors affect this estimate? 

! Determining salvage value (proceeds from eventual disposal) 

! Choosing a GAAP depreciation method 

15.514 Summer 2003
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Economic vs.  Accounting Depreciation


Blockbuster Video:


! What is the life of a video cassette? 

! What is its salvage value? 

! What allocation method best matches the expense to the 
use of the resource?
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GAAP depreciation methods


! Production (Use) Method 
< Depreciation cost per machine hour

      depreciable basis/service life (in machine-hours) 
< Depr. Expense = Actual hours used * hourly rate 

! Straight-line Depreciation 
< Annual Depreciation Expense 

      depreciable basis/service life (in years) 
< Used by overwhelming majority of US firms 

!	 Accelerated Depreciation 
< Mostly confined to tax reporting 
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Depreciation bookkeeping


! What financial statements are affected by depreciation?


! What accounts are affected?


! Does depreciation affect cash?


15.514 Summer 2003
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Changes in depreciation assumptions


!	 Caused by change in asset life or salvage value 

!	 Apply the change prospectively, i.e., to future years (no 
restatement) 

15.514 Summer 2003
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Accounting for long-lived assets: An Illustration


Example: Beginning of Year 1: Cost = $100K, Salvage Value = 0,

initial UL estimate of 5 years.  After 2nd year, spend $30K on

improvement that extends UL by 3 years (i.e., to total of 8).


Cash + PPE  - AccDep  + OA =  L + CC + RE 

Yr 1: 

Yr 2: 

Yr 3: 
.

 .

 .


Yr: 8 
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Gain or loss on disposal of long-lived assets


Example:  At end of 7th year, when BV is $15K, sell Asset from last 
example for scrap value of $2K. 

Cash + PPE  - AccDep + OA = L + E 

15.514 Summer 2003
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PP&E and the Indirect SCF


! Cash From (Used by) Investing Activities:  
< Cash Used to Purchase PP&E

< Cash Received (if any) from Disposing of PP&E


! Cash From (Used by) Financing Activities: 
< What if PP&E is purchased using borrowed funds? 

! Cash From (Used by) Operating Activities: 
< Most firms use Indirect Method, i.e., start with reported 

Net Income and remove non-cash effects 
< What non-cash effects of PP&E bookkeeping are 

embedded in Net Income? 
Operating 
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PP&E disclosures for Intel - 2002


                        Cash  PPE 
(Gross) 

-Accum. 
Dep’n 

Inventory L CC RE 
(Dep’n Exp) 

Beg.  Bal. 34,356 16,235 

Additions 

Total Dep’n              

Disposals 

End.  Bal. 36,912 19,065 
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Tax and timing effects of long-lived assets


!	 Tax Depreciation 
< More accelerated

< No judgment


!	 Tax Reporting � Financial Reporting ==> timing differences 
in the measurement of income 
<	 Why would a firm prefer accelerated depreciation for tax 

purposes?

< Why does government allow this?

< Why not use tax methods for financial reporting?


!	 This difference gives rise to Deferred Taxes - more on this 
later 
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Summary


!	 Expenditures on fixed assets are capitalized: either as PPE or 
part of inventory; these expenditures are later “matched” to 
revenues produced by the fixed assets. 

!	 Depreciation does not involve cash.  Cash is involved only at 
acquisition and disposal. 

!	 Discretion is applied on making estimates of useful life, 
salvage value, and choice of depreciation method 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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15.514 SUMMER SESSION 

SESSION 7 

THE MATCHING PRINCIPLE AND LONG-LIVED ASSETS 

Concepts & Objectives 
1.	 Understand more applications of the matching principle 

a. Allocating historical costs to future revenues
b. Accruing expenses related to outstanding obligations

2.	 Understand the concept of “Depreciation” and the assumptions used to calculate

depreciation.


3.	 Continue to learn how to reverse engineer related accounting entries from financial 

statement information. 
4.	 Begin to understand and appreciate the Statement of Cash Flows. 

Reading Assignment 
Pratt: Chapter 9, Chapter 4 (pp. 118 - 130)


Intel: “Property, plant, and equipment,” and, “Advertising,” page 26. 

CP: Understanding the Statement of Cash Flows


Class Preparation Questions 
1.	 Explain how depreciating PP&E is an example of the matching principle. 

2.	 When a long- lived asset is sold, how is the gain or loss (if any) determined? Why would a 
gain or loss arise? How would it affect the Income Statement and Statement of Cash 

Flows? 
3.	 How is the Accumulated Depreciation account similar to other asset accounts you have 

seen in the past? 

4.	 What was the value of Intel’s gross PP&E and accumulated depreciation at the end of 
2001? What is Intel’s depreciation expense for 2001? How much PP&E did Intel 

purchase in 2001? 
5.	 Pratt: E9-10 (straight- line only), E9-15 (parts a. and c. only, use the BSE instead of 

journal entries) 

Optional Questions 
E9-5, E9-18, BE9-3, ID9-7 
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15.514 SUMMER SESSION 

SESSION 8,


MATCHING PRINCIPLE: PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT


Objectives 
1.	 Reinforce and extend your understanding of accounting for property, plant, and 

equipment. 
2.	 Better appreciate how the usage and judgment challenges are contextual, 

depending especially on the business, the individuals making decisions, and the 
regulatory environment. 

Game Plan & Class Pedagogy 

Case discussion. 

Reading Assignment


CP: Depreciation at Delta and Pan Am (case). 


Class Preparation Questions 
Case preparation questions for Delta and Pan Am 

1. Preparer's Perspective 
Management makes three accounting decisions to meet the computation 

challenge associated with depreciation. They must determine the (a) holding 
period, (b) residual value, and (c) usage pattern they will use for financial 
reporting. 

a.
 Management will have private information about the related economic activity 

that will influence these accounting decisions. hat business decision(s) 
require management to estimate the holding period, residual value, and usage 
Are these business decisions made before, after, or concurrent with the 

accounting decisions ho is likely to be involved in these decisions 
(marketing, operations, strategy and development, the chief financial officer, 

the chief executive officer, etc.) and what are their roles uppose you were 
asked to estimate the holding period, usage patterns, and residual values (as an 
employee of Pan Am or Delta)  what types of information would you collect 

and from whom ow would you expect this information to differ for Delta 
and Pan Am in 1 

b. 
Management's accounting decisions can be influenced by users' conflicting 
demands for information. uppose airlines disclose the same financial 

information to aircraft vendors, customers, current and potential future 
shareholders, and competitors. or what decisions would each of these 

stakeholders like to know management's private information about (their 
estimates of) residual values, usage patterns, and holding periods xplain 
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XYZ Company: 
An E xercise for Pre paring the Statem ent of Cash F lows 

Using the Direct and Indirect Methods 

Transactions at 1/1/99: 

(T1) Issues stock and receives $1,000 in cash. 
(T2) Issues 10%, 2-year bond for $2,000 cash.  Part of the principle ($1,000) is due 

on 12/31/99. Interest is not paid until 12/31/00. 
(T3) Buys equipment, issuing an 8% note payable, for $1,500.  There is no expected 

salvage value, and the estimated useful life is 3 years. 
(T4) Buys inventory for $1,000 cash. 

Transactions during the year: 

(T5) Sells inventory with original cost of $600 for $5,000 on account. 
(T6) Collects $500 of the receivables noted in T5. 

Transactions at 12/31/99: 

(T7) Pays $1,000 of the bond principle. 

(T8) Records interest accrued on the bond of $200 (10% of $2,000). 

(T9) Records and pays interest on the note payable of $120 (8% of $1,500). 

(T10) Records depreciation of $500 on the equipment. 

(T11) Sells equipment for $1,800 cash. 

(T12) Pays dividend to shareholder of $2,000 cash. 


Required: 

1. 	 Record the Balance Sheet Equation (BSE) effects of these 12 transactions.  
2. 	 Prepare a Statement of Cash Flows (SCF) for 1999, using the direct method for “Cash 

Flows from Operating Activities.” 
3. 	 Prepare an Income Statement for 1999. 
4. 	 Prepare a Balance Sheet as of 12/31/99. 
5. 	 Redo the Statement of Cash Flows (SCF) for 1999, using the indirect method for 

“Cash Flows from Operating Activities.” 

Background reading:  Pratt, Chapter 14 and/or Understanding the Statement of Cash 

Flows from the Course Pack. Some students find that the latter provides a more intuitive 
explanation of the Indirect method. 
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Transactions Template for XYZ Company 


Cash +PP&E 
- Acc. 

Dep. 
= 

Notes +Bonds 

Capital 

BB 0 0 0 0 0 = 0 0 0 0 0 

T1 = 

T2 = 

T3 = 

T4 = 

T5 = 

= 

T6 = 

T7 = 

T8 = 

T9 = 

T10 = 

T11 = 

T12 = 

EB = 

+ Inv’y + A/R 
Payable 

+ Int. 

Payable Payable 

+ Cont. 
+ Ret. Earn. 
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______ 

______ 

______ 

______ 

______ 

______ 

______ 

______ 

______ 

______ 

______ 

_______ 

SCF -- Direct Method 

Cash from Operations: 

Cash Received from Customers: 

Cash Paid to Suppliers: 

Cash Paid for Interest: 

Total 

Cash from Investing: 

Proceeds from Selling PP&E 

Total 

Cash from Financing: 

Issuing Stock 

Issuing Bonds 

Repayments of Bonds 

Payment of Dividends 

Total 

Total Change in Cash 
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Note on Cash Flow Statements 

Indirect Cash Flow Statements can be pretty confusing, but they don't have to be if you think about their 
relationship to the other financial statements. Here I present several examples to help you to intuitively 
think about how you can use the income statement and the balance sheet to determine the statement of cash 
flows using the indirect method. After looking at these examples, you can construct even more complicated 
ones for yourself to strengthen your intuition. 

There is a mathematical method for thinking about the indirect method. Here I will repeat the derivation 
that you saw in class. You should also have this information in 

• 	 the note entitled "Understanding the Statement of Cash Flow" in the course packet, and 

• 	 the class slides "The Statement of Cash Flow." 

Balance Sheet Equation: 
A(t) = L(t) + SE(t) Beginning Balance Sheet Equation (at time t) 
A(t+1) = L(t+1) + SE(t+1) Ending Balance Sheet Equation (at time t+1 period) 

Differences: 

∆A = ∆L + ∆SE 

Decompose: 

∆Cash + ∆OCA + ∆NCA = ∆CL + ∆NCL + ∆CC + ∆OE + ∆RE 


Note that ∆RE = NI - Div so we have: 

∆Cash + ∆OCA + ∆NCA = ∆CL + ∆NCL + ∆CC + ∆OE + NI - Div 


Since we are interested in the change in cash, we re-arrange to solve for the change in cash: 

∆Cash 	 = - ∆OCA - ∆NCA + ∆CL + ∆NCL + ∆CC + ∆OE + NI - Div 

= + NI - ∆OCA + ∆CL - ∆NCA + ∆NCL + ∆CC + ∆OE - Div 

Putting in the accounts we know about: 

∆Cash 	 = + NI - ∆netA/R - ∆Inv. - ∆OCA + ∆CL - ∆netPPE - ∆NCA + ∆NCL + ∆CC + ∆OE - Div 

But the change in net PP&E can be broken down even further into B/S and I/S effects: 

∆netPPE 	= ∆PPE - ∆AccDepreciation 

= Gain(Loss) - DepExp + (∆PPE - ∆AccDepreciation) -Gain(Loss) + DepExp 

• 	 Since Gains(Losses) should not affect the Operating Section, but are included in the 
IncomeStatement, they need to be subtracted(added) from Net Income in this section. 

• 	 Since Depreciation Expense is a non-cash expense (but affects Net Income), it needs to be 
added back to the Net Income in the Operating Section. 

Inserting the expanded ∆netPPE: 

∆Cash = + NI - ∆netA/R - ∆Inv. - ∆OCA + ∆CL - (Gain(Loss) - DepExp + (∆PPE – 

∆AccDepreciation) -Gain(Loss) + DepExp) - ∆NCA + ∆NCL + ∆CC + ∆OE - Div 

Rearranging: 

∆Cash = + NI + DepExp - ∆netA/R - ∆Inv. - ∆OCA + ∆CL - Gain(Loss) OPERATING 
- (∆PPE - ∆AccDepreciation) +Gain(Loss) - DepExp - ∆NCA + ∆OE INVESTING 
+ ∆NCL + ∆CC - Div 	 FINANCIING 

Further: 

∆PPE =Acquisition – Disposal at Original Cost 

∆AccDepreciation = DepExp – AccDepreciation of Disposed Item 


Thus: 

∆PPE - ∆AccDepreciation -Gain(Loss) + DepExp = Acquisition – (Disposal at Original 

Cost - AccDepreciation of Disposed Item) - Gain(Loss) 

= Acquisition – Proceeds from Disposal 

Sloan School of Management, 15.515 
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1 

Example 1 - Revenues and the indirect statement of cash flows 
A Simple Example - Services sold with no COGS 

Transaction Assets = Liabilities + Shareholders' Equity Notes 

Cash A/R Retained Earnings 

Make a sale for cash $30,000 $30,000 Sales Revenue 

Make a sale on credit $42,000 42,000 Sales Revenue 

Customer pays part of A/R 37,000 (37,000) 

$67,000 $5,000 $72,000 

Cash Collected 
of $67,000 

Equals Increase 
in A/R of 

$5,000 

Minus the Net Income of 
$72,000 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Cash from Operating 
Net Income $ 72,000 
Adjustments 

(Less increases1 in Current Assets) 

Increase in A/R (5,000) 

Cash Increase from Operating $ 67,000 

Cash from Investing $ 0 

Cash from Financing $ 0 

Change in cash $ 67,000 
Beginning cash balance 0 
Ending cash balance $ 67,000 

Decreases in Current Assets would be Added 
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2 

Example 2 - Revenues with COGS and the indirect statement of cash flows 
An Example - Goods sold with COGS (Goods sold at 10 times the value of COGS ) 

Note that each sale is split up into 2 transactions on the BSE: a Revenue component and COGS component 

Shareholders' 
Transaction Assets = Liabilities + Notes 

Equity 

Cash A/R Inventory Retained 
Earnings 

Purchase Inv w/cash 
Make a sale for cash 

($10,000) 
30,000 $30,000 Sales Revenue 

COGS (3,000) COGS 
Make a sale on credit $42,000 42,000 Sales Revenue

 COGS (4,200) (4,200) COGS 

Customer pays part of A/R 37,000 (37,000) 

$57,000 $5,000 $2,800 $64,800 

Cash Increase in Increase in 
Collected of A/R of Inv. Of 

$57,000 $5,000 $2,800 

$10,000 

(3,000) 

Minus theEquals and 

Net Income 
of $64,800 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Cash from Operating 
Net Income $64,800 

Adjustments 
(Less increases2 in Current Assets) 

Increase in A/R 

Increase in Inventory 

Cash Change in Operating 

Cash from Investing 
Cash from Financing 

(5,000) 

(2,800) 

$57,000 

$0 

$0 

Change in cash $57,000 

Beginning cash balance $0 

Ending cash balance $57,000 

Decreases would be added 
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Example 3 - Expenses 
An Example - Salary Expenses 

Transaction Assets = Liabilities + Shareholders' Equity Notes 

Cash Salaries Payable Retained Earnings 

Pay Salaries 
Accrue Salaries 

($13,000) 
$1,000 

($13,000) 
(1,000) 

Salary Expense 

Salary Expense 

($13,000) $1,000 ($14,000) 

Cash Spent of 
$13,000 

Equals Increase in Salary 
Pay. of $1,000 

Plus the 
Net Income of 

($14,000) 

Cash from Operating 
Net Income ($ 14,000) 
Adjustments 

(Less increases3 in Current Assets) 

none 
(Plus increases4 in Current Liabilities) 

Change in Salaries Payable 1,000 

Cash Increase from Operating 

$ 0 

Cash from Financing $ 0 

Change in cash 
Beginning cash balance 0 
Ending cash balance 

Statement of Cash Flows 

(0) 

($ 13,000) 

Cash from Investing 

($ 13,000) 

($ 13,000) 

3 Decreases in Current Assets would be added 
4 Decreases in Current Liabilities would be subtracted 
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Example 4 - PP&E 
An Example - Acquiring and Selling PP&E 

Shareholders' 
Transaction Assets = Liabilities + Notes 

Equity 

Cash Retained 
Deprec. Earnings 

Buy PP&E ($60,000) $60,000 
Sell PP&E (gain) 9,000 (30,000) ($25,000) $4,000 Gain on sale 

Deprec. Exp. 35,000 (35,000) Deprec. Exp. 

($51,000) $30,000 $10,000 ($31,000) 

Cash spent of Equals Increase in Increase in
Minus Add 

$51,000 PP&E of 
$30,000 of $10,000 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Cash from Operating Cash from Investing 
Net Income Purchase of PP&E 
Adjustments Sale of PP&E 9,000 

(Less increases in Current Assets) ($ 51,000) 
none 

Cash from Financing $ 0 
none 0 
(and adjustments due to PP&E) 

Add back Depreciation Exp 35,000 
Subtract (add) Gain (Loss) ( 

Cash Increase from Operating $ 

Change in cash 
Beginning cash balance 0 
Ending cash balance 

0 

Alternate method for determining Cash from Investing: 

Less Change Net PP&E 
Change in PP&E 

10,000 

Plus Gains 4,000 
Less Deprec. Exp. 

TOTAL Cash from Investing 

PP&E - Accum. 

Net Income 
Accum Depr of ($31,000) 

($31,000 ) ($60,000 ) 

(0 ) 
(Plus increases in Current Liabilities) 

4,000 ) 

($ 51,000) 

($ 51,000) 

($30,000 ) 
Change in Accum Deprec 

($ 20,000 ) 

(35,000 ) 
($ 51,000 ) 
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Statement of Cash Flows


! 

! 

! 

! 

! 
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Statement of Cash Flows


Beginning Balance

   Assets               = Liabilities  +  S.E. 

)Cash +)OA = )Liabilities + )CC  +  NI - Div 

Assets  =   Liabilities  + S.E. 
Ending Balance 

Y )Cash  +/- “other stuff”  = NI 
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Statement of Cash Flows


! Fixed claimants (lenders) 

! Residual claimants (shareholders) 

! Managers 

Why do we need a separate financial statement?


15.514 Summer 2003


Session 9


www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

108
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Statement of Cash Flows


!Direct or indirect statements 

!Categorize transactions into one of the following: 

<	Operating Activities 

<	 cash provided by the sale of goods or service, including interest and dividends 
received 

<	 cash used to pay operating expenses, including interest expense 

<	Investing Activities 

< cash used to buy long-term assets and investments


< cash obtained by selling long-term assets and investments


<	Financing Activities 

< cash provided by issuing stock or debt instruments


< cash used to repay debt principal and repurchase stock


< cash used to pay dividends, but NOT interest paid on debt
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Statement of Cash Flows


!Direct: start from cash transactions 

< Investing and Financing sections ==> always direct 

! Indirect: start from NI, back out accruals 

< Cash flow amount from operations  ==> same as direct 

< Key difference:  Presentation in the cash flow from 
operations section
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Statement of Cash Flows


!What events affect cash flow from operations and net income 
equally? 

!What events affect cash flow from operations but NOT net 
income? 

!What events affect net income but NOT cash flow from 
operations? 
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Statement of Cash Flows


Direct


Beginning Cash 

+ Cash rcv’d from customers 

+ Interest received 

- Cash paid to suppliers 

- Cash paid to employees 

- Interest paid 

+/- other adjustments 

= Cash from Operations 

+/- Cash from Investing 

+/- Cash from Financing 

= Ending Cash 

Indirect 

Beginning Cash 

Net Income 

+ Increase in payables 

- Increase in receivables 

+/- other adjustments 

= Cash from Operations


+/- Cash from Investing


+/- Cash from Financing


= Ending Cash
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Statement of Cash Flows


Balance sheet equation:   Differences:

 A(t) = L(t) + E(t) => DA = DL + DE 

Decompose: 

DCash + DCA + DNCA = DCL + DNCL + DCC + DOE + DRE


Note that DRE = NI - Div, thus after rearranging,


DCash = NI - DCA + DCL - DNCA + DNCL + DOE + DCC -Div


Accounts we know:


DCash = NI  - DnetAR - DInventory - DOCA + DCL -DnetPPE


 - DONCA  + DNCL + DOE + DCC - Div
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 + 

Statement of Cash Flows


DCash = DCashoperations + DCashinvesting + DCashfinancing 

DCashoperations = NI + DepExp - DnetAR - DInventory  -DOCA 
+ DCL  - Gain(Loss) 

DCashinvesting = -DnetPPE + Gain(Loss) -DepExp -DONCA+DOE
 = - Acquisitions + Disposals - DONCA+DOE 

DCashfinancing = DNCL + DCC - Div 
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Special Rules for Significant Noncash Transactions


Some transactions are omitted from the SCF but disclosed 
elsewhere (such as at the bottom of the SCF) so long as 
they are material: 
< Acquisition of assets by assuming liabilities (including 

capital lease obligations) or by issuing equity securities 
< Exchanges of non-monetary assets 
< Refinancing of long-term debt 
< Conversion of debt or preferred stock to common stock 
< Issuance of equity securities to retire debt 
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15.514 SUMMER 2003 

SESSION 9 

THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

Objectives 

1.	 Understand the purpose of the SCF. 

2.	 Distinguish between the three sections of the SCF. 

3.	 Understand the differences between the direct and the indirect SCF. 

4.	 Understand how to derive the indirect SCF from the Income Statement and the  

Balance Sheet. 

Reading Assignment 
Pratt: Chapter 14 

Intel: p. 22 

CP: Understanding the Statement of Cash Flow 

Class Preparation Questions 

1.	 Explain the differences between the direct and the indirect SCF. 

2.	 Why is a company’s Net Income different from its net cash increase for the year? 

3.	 In the Operating Activities section of the indirect SCF, why is depreciation expense 

added back into the cash flow? 

4.	 In the Operating Activities section of the indirect SCF, why do you subtract an 

increase in an asset account such as Accounts Receivable? 

5.	 Looking at Intel’s SCF, did Inventories increase or decrease in 2001?  By how much? 

What about Intel’s Accounts Payable? 

Optional Problems 

P14-2, E14-7, E14-8, E14-9, E14-10 
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Objectives and Game Plan 


! Introduction to Ratio Analysis 

! Overview of other properties of earnings 
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ROE (Dupont) Analysis 


NI 
= NI + (int. exp.) X NI X Assets 

SE Assets NI + (int. exp.) SE 

 Operating  Capital 

Performance  Structure 


“return on assets” 


“return on  “asset 

sales” turnover” 


NI + (int. exp.)  Sales 
XSales Assets 
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Comparative Analysis: 2000 
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Return on Sales vs.  Asset Turnover 


Sales 
Assets 

NI + (int. exp.) 
Sales 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Return on Sales (positive only) vs.  Asset Turnover 


Sales 

Assets 


Each point represents an 
industry 

Semiconductors NI + (int. exp.) 
Sales 
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Return on Sales (positive only) vs.  Asset Turnover 


NI + (int. exp.) 
Sales 

Sales 
Assets 

14% 
8% 
2% 

Return on Assets 

Semiconductors 
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Comparative Analysis: 2000 
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Intel over time 


15.514 Summer 2003 


www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

124
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Comparative Analysis 
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Microsoft 
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Microsoft 


! 	 Anything unusual about Microsoft? 
< 2002 Total Assets $67.646 billion 

– 	 $38,652 billion was cash or near-cash (57 percent) 
– 	 Even at 5% that’s going to earn less than $2 billion 

(MSFT reported $1.76 billion in interest) 
< What effect does this have on ROA? Other components? 
< Remove the effects of cash from NI (after-tax) and Assets 
< Other aspects of MSFT accounting choices - they expense 

all software development when some could be capitalized.  

– 	 What accounts does this decision affect?  What 


direction? 
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Microsoft 
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Percent of firms reporting negative NI 
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Accounting for Income Taxes


Objectives: 

! Understand the differences between tax accounting and 
financial accounting 
P Timing: temporary differences 
P Scope: permanent differences 

! Understand the effects of events on income taxes 
P Net operating losses 
P Valuation allowances 
P Changes in tax rates 

! Interpret income tax disclosures 
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GAAP  vs. Tax Code


Examples of differences: 

! Revenue Recognition:  rental fees collected in advance

< GAAP : Rent revenue recognized when earned (passage of time) 

< Tax Code:  Rent collections considered as taxable income 


! Matching principle:  depreciation of fixed assets 

< GAAP:  Different depreciation methods allowed, e.g. straight line 

< Tax Code:  MACRS (accelerated); no residual value 


! Other items:  Revenue from municipal bonds 

< GAAP:  Revenue recognized as interest is earned (passage of time) 

< Tax Code:  Interest revenue exempt from federal taxes


What factors cause differences in accounting rules for GAAP and the Tax 
Code? 
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Timing Difference: Illustration


A company bought a $100,000 asset in the beginning of 2000.   

                Financial reporting Tax reporting 

Asset life                      3 years               2 years 
Depreciation rate      Straight line                                   MACRS: 60%, 40% 
Residual value  $10,000 $0 

                        Schedule of depreciation 

Year  Financial 
                    reporting      
                  depreciation  

Tax 
  reporting

depreciation    

Depreciation  Accumulated
 difference difference,

                        end of the year 

2000  30,000 60,000 30,000 30,000 
2001  30,000 40,000 10,000 40,000 
2002  30,000 - (30,000) 10,000 

disposal  10,000 - (10,000) -
15.514 Summer 2003 
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Accounting for Timing Differences: 2000


Income before depreciation is $81,500 for both financial and tax reporting.  The tax 
rate is 30% with no anticipated change.

                  Financial reporting Tax reporting 
NI before Depr  81,500                                               81,500 

- Depreciation  (30,000)                           (60,000)     

=NI before taxes           51,500                               21,500 

Tax Payable            

Tax Expense             

6,450 

15,450

      Tax Expense = Tax Payable + ???

    How should we account for ??? 
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Two Methods of Accounting for Timing

Differences


! Japan, Germany:  ??? = part of income tax expense 
< Essentially, GAAP = Tax Code 
< No matching distortions: revenue and expenses also computed under the Tax 

Code 

! United States:  ??? = recognize as "deferred tax liability" 
< Good matching: Tax expense is matched in the year pre-tax income is 

recognized (2000) 
< Deferred:  part of income tax expense won't be paid in 2000, but some time 

in the future 

Income tax expense  =  Current tax expense +  Deferred tax expense
(NI)            (Taxes payable)          ()Deferred Tax Liability) 

Deferred tax expense = Timing difference*tax rate 
= )Deferred Tax Liability 
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Deferred Taxes over Time 


Deferred taxes caused by timing differences are temporary, because they reverse 
over time. 

Year

Year

 Financial 
reporting

depreciation 

Tax Depreciation  Deferred Acc. Depr  
reporting  difference       Tax Difference, 
depreciation  Expense (EB) 

Def Tax
Liability 
(EB) 

2000  30,000 60,000 30,000 9,000 30,000 9,000 
2001  30,000 40,000 10,000 3,000 40,000 12,000 
2002  30,000 - (30,000) (9,000) 10,000 3,000 

disposal  10,000 - (10,000)     (3,000) - 

! Timing differences that create / increase deferred taxes over time are called 
originating differences 

! Timing differences that remove / decrease deferred taxes over time are

called reversing differences
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Deferred Tax Liability: Summary 


Deferred tax liabilities arise/increase when a timing difference leads to: 

Taxable income < Pretax Income 

! GAAP recognizes more revenue than the Tax Code 
< Revenue recognition before cash collection (e.g., unremitted earnings of 

foreign subsidiaries) 

! GAAP matches less expenses than the Tax Code 
< Expenses matched in the Tax Code are  accelerated relative to GAAP 

(e.g., MACRS vs. straight line) 

Deferred tax liabilities decrease (to zero) when the above events reverse in the 
future. 

15.514 Summer 2003 
Session 11 

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

136
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Deferred Tax Asset: Illustration


Suppose that total rent collected in 2000 was $100,000, of which $50,000 was  rent 
paid in advance for 2001. Tax rate is 30%. 

                  Financial reporting Tax reporting 
NI before taxes           50,000                                100,000 

Tax Payable            30,000 

Tax Expense              15,000

   Tax Expense = Taxes Payable -Deferred Tax Asset

 15,000 = 30,000 - 15,000 

A deferred tax asset of $15,000 was created in 2000.  The reversal occurs in 2001 
when the (financial) revenue for 2001 is recognized. 
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Deferred Tax Asset: Summary


Deferred tax assets arise/increase when a timing difference leads to: 

Taxable income  > Pretax Income 

! GAAP recognizes less revenue  than the Tax Code

< Revenue recognition after cash collection (e.g., rent collected in


advance)


! GAAP matches more expenses than the Tax Code 
< Expenses matched before cash outflow in the Tax Code (e.g., warranty 

expense before servicing warranty claims) 

Deferred tax assets decrease (to  zero) when the above events reverse in the 
future. 
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Tax Effects of Marketable Securities


Suppose the value of stock you own goes up by $100.  Are you $100 richer? 

In the U.S., capital gains and losses are not recognized for tax purposes unless 
realized.  We will soon see that unrealized gains and losses from certain securities 
are recognized in the financial statements. 

These unrealized gains and losses carry with them an obligation to pay more or less 
in future taxes, i.e. deferred liabilities or assets. 

Consider GE Capital (1999, $ in millions)
 1999 1998

     Net deferred tax liability (asset)

              Net unrealized gains on securities          <95> 665 
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Deferred Tax Disclosures: Intel


Explain how timing differences arise from the following deferred tax components: 
Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at fiscal year 
end were as follows: 
(In Millions)                                   
Deferred tax assets 
Accrued compensation and benefits                   
Accrued advertising                                   
Deferred income                                   
Inventory valuation and related reserves  
Interest and taxes                                     
Impairment losses on investments                   
Other, net                                          

Deferred tax liabilities 
Depreciation
Acquired intangibles                               
Unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries  
Unrealized gains on investments                       
Other, net                                         

Net deferred tax asset (liability)

 2002 2001


$ 185 $ 120

96 102


183 207

184 209

29 89


256 179

203 52


 1,136 958


(949) (461)

(110) (280)

(122) (164)

(35) (30)

(16) (10)


 (1,232) (945)

$ (96) $ 13
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.

Intel’s Deferred Tax Liability Accounts


 Assets = Liabilities + S. E.

BB1
 Cash Oth Assets  = inc tax pay.

998 
net def taxes 

(13) 
OE RE 

Tax Expense2  977 110 (1,087) 

Tax Payments3  (475) (475) 

Security Gains4  37 13 24 

Tax benefit 
of stock plans5  (270) 270 

Other (plug)6  (73) (14) 

EB1  1,157 96 
1.From the Balance Sheet; Negative indicates net deferred tax asset

2.The Income Statement reports 1,087 as the total tax expense.  The components come from the tax footnote.  Payable

(542+143+292) + Deferred (91+19)

3.475 cash payment from the SCF.

4.The 24 (43-19). is from the Statement of Stockholder’s Equity and is net of tax  With a tax rate of 35% the gross change

is (37) and the deferred tax is (13). 

5.From the Statement of Stockholder’s Equity.  Trust us on the offset to “Other Equity.”

6.Like it says, a plug. 15.514 Summer 2003
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Permanent Differences: Illustration 


Suppose that in addition to $50,000 in taxable income,  Baxter earns $10,000 in 
interest every year from its municipal bonds.  Interest from municipal bonds are 
NOT taxable.  There are no timing differences.  Tax rate is 30%. 

Define 

Effective tax rate = Income tax expense/Pretax Income 

Year  NI before Taxable  Income tax  Taxes due Cumulative Effective
 Tax Income Expense                             Income Diff  Tax rate 

2000  60,000 50,000 15,000 15,000 10,000 25% 
2001  60,000 50,000 15,000 15,000 20,000 25% 
2002  60,000 50,000 15,000 15,000 30,000 25% 

The “effective tax rate” decreased by 5% in 2000 through 2002. In addition, 
the difference between taxable income and pretax income never reverses. 
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Permanent Differences: Summary


! Permanent differences are never expected to reverse (e.g., income that is never 
taxable) 

! Permanent differences do not create deferred taxes. However, they do change 
the effective tax rate, because the basis of income tax expense is adjusted for 
permanent differences. 
P Tax-exempt revenues (e.g. interest income from state and local bonds) 

decreases the effective tax rate 
P Non-tax deductible expenses (e.g. government fines) increases the 

effective tax rate 

           Income tax expense =(Pretax income -Tax-exempt revenues 
+ Nondeductible expense)*tax rate 

           Effective tax rate = Income tax expense / Pretax financial income 
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Tax Deductions from Net Operating Losses

(NOL)


When TAXABLE income is negative, a firm generates a "Net Operating Loss 
(NOL)." These losses can be used to reduce past and /or future taxable income.  

! Net operating loss carryback: generates a refund of income taxes paid from 
two years back, in the order of years, starting with the earliest year.  

A  = L + E

    Income tax refund receviable  =               -(- Income tax expense) 

! Net operating loss carryforward: reduces taxable income in subsequent 
years, up to a maximum of 20 years. Leftover NOL carryback may be carried 
forward, but once an NOL is carried forward, it can no longer be carried back. 

NOL carryforwards are recorded as deferred tax assets.  

A  = L + E
 Deferred tax asset  =                               -(-Income tax expense) 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Valuation Allowance


If the benefits of a deferred tax asset are not likely to be realized, the value of the 
deferred tax asset balance  should be reduced by a "valuation account". 

! Conservatism:  no symmetric adjustment for deferred tax liabilities, except 
when future tax rates decrease 

! Application of judgement: "likely" means more than 50% probability of

occuring.


! Bad signal: implies that management believes not enough earnings in the

future


! Valuation allowance increases the effective tax rate when recognized (because 
it increases income tax expense). 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Changes in Tax Rates

When tax rates change, deferred tax assets and liabilities are readjusted to reflect 
the taxes that will be incurred when the reversals occur  (proper matching). 

! The new tax rate is used for timing differences as soon as the law instituting 
the tax change is enacted, even if the law is not yet officially in force. 

! Adjustments to previous balances are disclosed as additions or reductions in 
the deferred tax component of income tax expense. 

! Changes in tax rates affect the effective tax rates from the year new tax rates 
are enacted until the new tax rates are in effect. 

Income tax expense = Current tax expense + Deferred tax expense  + DTA/L adj. 
  (current rate)                  (future rate)  (future-current) 

In 1993, Congress increased in federal tax rate for corporations, from 34% to 35%. 
Ford reported a decrease in income taxes of $199 million in 1993 due to the rate 
adjustment. Why was the effect of a tax rate increase negative for Ford?  (Ford
had a deferred tax asset.) 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Disclosure Rules


!	Income statement 
<	 Separate Income tax expense = current tax expense + deferred  tax expense
   (May be done in the footnotes) 

!	Footnotes 
<	 Components of income tax expense 
<	 Components of deferred tax expense

P Timing differences for the period

P NOL credits

P Effects of changes in tax rate

P Changes in valuation allowance


< Components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

< Reconciliation of statutory federal tax rate with effective tax rate


!	Balance sheet 
<	 Current and non-current components of deferred tax assets and liabilities 

netted out. 

!	SCF 
<	 Deferred tax expense added back to net income in operating section 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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15.514 SUMMER 2003 

SESSION 11 
ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES 
(This subject can be tough—preparation is essential) 

Objectives 
1. 	 Understand the differences between tax accounting and financial accounting: 

a Timing: temporary differences 
b Scope: permanent differences 

2. 	 Understand the effects of events on income taxes 
a Net operating losses 
b Valuation allowances 
c Changes in tax rates 

3. 	 Explore the concepts of “Deferred Tax Liability” and “Deferred Tax Asset.” 
4. 	 Interpret income tax disclosures 

Reading Assignment 
Intel: “Provision for Income Taxes”, pp.29-30 

Pratt: Appendix 10B. 


Class Preparation Questions 
1. 	 Distinguish between the objectives of financial reporting and the reporting according  

to the Internal Revenue Code. 
2. 	 What is a temporary tax difference? What are some examples?  What is a permanent 

tax difference? What are some examples? 
3. 	 What is the effective tax rate? Why might it be different from the statutory tax rate? 
4. 	 Why does the accelerated method of depreciation for tax purposes lead to a liability? 
5. 	 What was Intel's provision for taxes in 2001? How much of it was current and how 

much was deferred? 
6. 	 Does Intel have net deferred tax assets or liabilities? What were Intel's largest sources 

of deferred tax assets and liabilities? How much cash was paid during 2001 for 
income taxes? 

Optional Problems 
E10-13, P10-9, P10-10, ID10-12 
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Marketable Securities and Valuation Adjustments


Objectives


!	 Understand when accounting departs from the "transactions

based" model and towards market-driven valuations


!	 Illustrate the role of judgment in applying the lower-of-cost-

or-market (LCM) rule for inventory 


! Understand how marketable securities are valued on

companies' Balance Sheets 


! Understand the Income Statement effects of valuation

adjustments 


15.514 Summer 2003 
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Should changes in market value be recognized?


! Accounts receivable

< Estimates of uncollectibles

< Changes in credit risk


! Inventory 
< Purchase/production cost 
< Changes in input prices, obsolescence 

! Fixed Assets

< Acquisition cost (historical basis)

<
 Obsolescence 

Reliability vs. Relevance 
15.514 Summer 2003 
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Lower of cost or market rule for Inventory


<When Market Value of Inventory < Capitalized Cost 
< Loss on inventory writedown = Capitalized cost - Market Value, 

added to Cost of Goods Sold 
< Market value = minimum of replacement cost and selling price 
< Once inventory written down in the balance sheet, it cannot be 

“written up” in subsequent periods 

< Issues 
< Susceptibility to writedowns of LIFO vs. FIFO 
< “Hidden reserves” and income smoothing 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Valuation Adjustments: Royal Precision


Royal Precision, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Operations 

Year ended May 31 (000)  2002 2001 2000 
Net sales:

 Golf club shafts $19,833 $26,070 $25,559 
Golf club grips 3,729 3,927 4,540 

23,562 29,997 30,099 
Cost of sales:

 Golf club shafts 17,430 18,927 17,562 
Golf club grips 3,058 3,056 3,137 

20,488 21,983 20,699 
Gross profit  3,074 8,014 9,400 

included in here 
Net (loss) income  $(11,730) $(584) $870 
The operating loss for the fiscal year 2002 included the following nonrecurring 
items: a $1.4 million charge to adjust inventory to its expected net 
realizable value… 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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What are Marketable Securities?


! Marketable securities

< Corporate and government bonds, treasuries

<
 Common stock

< Derivative instruments: options, swaps, etc.


! Question 
< Should changes in market value of Marketable Securities 

be recognized (i.e., recorded on the I/S and B/S) 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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SFAS 115


!	 Mark-to-market accounting: gains and losses treated 
similarly 

! New classifications


<	 Trading securities (debt and equity) 
<	 Available for sale (debt and equity) 
<	 Held-to-maturity (debt only) 

!	 Controversy: where should changes in market value be 
reported? 

15.514 Summer 2003 
Session 12 

6


www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

154
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Marketable Securities


! Trading securities (debt and equity)

< Acquired for short-term profit potential

< Changes in market value reported in the income statement,


investment marked to market in the balance sheet

< Purchases and disposals reported in operating section of SCF 


!	 Held to maturity (debt only) 
< Acquired with ability and intent to hold to maturity 
< No changes in market value reported in the income statement, thus 

investment carried at historical cost in the balance sheet

< Interest income reported in operating section of SCF 


!	 Available for sale (debt and equity) 
< Securities not classified as either of above 
< Changes in market value reported in “Other Equity” (net of taxes), 

instead of the income statement! 
< Purchases and disposals reported in investing section of SCF 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Intel SCF 2002


2002 2001 2000 
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,117 1,291 10,535 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: 
...... 
(Gains) losses on equity securities, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 372 466 (3,759) 
(Gain) loss on investment in Convera . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 196 (117) 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Trading assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (444) 898 38 
..... 
Total adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,012 7,498 2,292 
Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,129 8,789 12,827 

Cash flows provided by (used for) investing activities: 
Additions to property, plant and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,703) (7,309) (6,674) 
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (57) (883) (2,317) 
Purchases of available-for-sale investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6,309) (7,141) (17,188) 
Maturities and sales of available-for-sale investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,634 15,398 17,124 
Other investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (330) (395) (980) 
Net cash used for investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (5,765) (330) (10,035) 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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“Adjunct” account

An Illustration:  Acquisition and Dividends (2002)


On Jan. 1, 2002, Ace acquired 500 common shares of security MITCo for $25/share.
 C MS +MSadj  DTL OE RE


Trading: 

AFS: 

On Nov. 30, 2002, Ace received $625 in dividends ($1.25/share of MITCo)
 C MS +MSadj  DTL OE RE 


Trading: 

AFS: 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Unrealized Gains and Losses (2002)

On Dec. 31, 2002, MITCo is trading at $30/share. Ace elected to keep the shares, and 
has a tax rate of 30%. 

15.514 Summer 2003 
Session 12 

Trading: C MS +MS  DTL OE RE 
BB:  12,500 

EB: 

AFS:  C MS +MS  DTL OE RE
 BB: 12,500 

EB: 

adj

adj
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Unrealized Gains and Losses (2003)

On Dec. 31, 2003, MITCo is trading at $27/share. Ace elected to keep the shares.


Trading: C MS +MS  DTL OE RE 
BB:  12,500 2,500 750 

EB: 

AFS:  C MS +MS  DTL OE RE
 BB: 12,500 2,500 750 1,750 

EB: 

adj

adj

15.514 Summer 2003
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Realized Gains and Losses (2004)

On Feb. 14, 2004, Ace sold all of its investment in MITCo, then trading at $36/share.


Trading: C MS +MS  DTL OE RE 
BB:  12,500 1,000 300 

EB: 

AFS:  C MS +MS  DTL OE RE
 BB: 12,500 1,000 300 700 

EB: 

adj

adj

15.514 Summer 2003
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-1500 

Marketable Securities: Pre-Tax Income patterns


 Trading Available for Sale 
5,500 5,500 

4,500 4,500 

2,500 2,500 

02 03 04 02 03 04 

-1500 
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Reclassifications of Marketable Securities


<Trading to Available for sale 
< Gains or losses of the period recognized on reclassification date 
< Subsequent market value changes reported in “Other Equity” 

<Available for sale to Trading 
< Cumulative gains or losses, including those of current period, 

recognized on reclassification date 
< Subsequent market value changes reported in the income statement 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Marketable Securities Disclosure - Intel

Available-for-Sale Investments 
Available-for-sale investments  at December 28 , 2002: see Intel 2002 Annual Report, pp. 58.  

19 

Available-for-sale investments  at December 29 , 2001: see Intel 2001 Annual Report, pp. 28.

Change = 19 - 50 = -31 

50 

decrease in MSadj 15.514 Summer 2003 
Session 12 
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Intel’s Deferred Tax Liability Accounts

 Assets = Liabilities + S. E.

 Cash Oth Assets = inc tax pay. net def taxes OE RE 
BB1  998 (13) 

2  977 110 (1,087) 

Tax Payments3  (475) (475) 

Security Gains4  37 13 24 

Tax Expense

Tax benefit 
of stock plans5  (270) 270 

Other (plug)6  (73) (14) 

EB1  1,157 96 
1.From the Balance Sheet; Negative indicates net deferred tax asset 
2.The Income Statement reports 1,087 as the total tax expense.  The components come from the tax footnote. Payable 
(542+143+292) + Deferred (91+19). 
3.475 cash payment from the SCF. 
4.The 24 (43-19). is from the Statement of Stockholder’s Equity and is net of tax  With a tax rate of 35% the gross change 
is (37) and the deferred tax is (13). The available for sale component of the change in other asssets (-19/.65) which equals 
(29) approximates the value calculated from the footnote for AFS investment.

5.From the Statement of Stockholder’s Equity.  Trust us on the offset to “Other Equity.”
 15.514 Summer 2003
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Data Source: Intel Corporation's Annual Report.
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Why does recognition of gains/losses matter?


Former SEC Chairman Breeden, on mark-to-market (ca 1990): If you are in a volatile 
business, then your balance sheet and income statement should reflect that volatility. 
Furthermore, we have seen significant abuse of managed earnings. Too often companies buy 
securities with an intent to hold them as investments, and then miraculously, when they rise in 
value, the companies decide it's time to sell them. Meanwhile, their desire to hold those 
securities that are falling in value grows ever stronger. So companies report the gains and hide 
the losses. 

Former SEC Chairman Arthur Levitt, Jr (1997): it is unacceptable to allow American 
investors to remain in the dark about the consequences of a $23 trillion derivatives exposure. 
We support the independence of the FASB as they turn on the light. 

Federal Reserve Chairman Greenspan, on derivatives (ca 1997): Putting the unrealized gains 
and losses of open derivatives contracts onto companies’ income statements would introduce 
"artificial" volatility to their earnings and equity. Shareholders would become confused; 
management might forego sensible hedging strategies out of purely window dressing concerns. 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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A compromise (and “compromised’) GAAP?


!	 Recognize all unrealized gains/losses for “trading securities”

in Net Income 


!	 Mark “available for sale” securities to market value, but 
don’t report changes in the income statement. This reduces 
the “volatility” of the income statement. (Managers do not 
like volatility and have similarily complained about the 
volatility derivatives accounting could have -but that’s 
another issue) 

!	 Ignore value changes for “held to maturity” category 
15.514 Summer 2003 

Session 12 
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FAS 130 (June 1997): Comprehensive Income


<Addressed concerns many had of items bypassing the income

statement.


<Unrealized gains/losses of AFS securities are recorded 
directly to shareholders' equity as a component of "Other 
Comprehensive Income." 
< Do NOT include as part of net income.  (do not pass GO; do not 

accrue $200) 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Intel:  Other comprehensive income


15.514 Summer 2003 
Session 12 
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For financial data on Intel's Components of Comprehensive Income 
at December 29, 2001 and December 28, 2002, see that portion of 
Intel Corporation's 2002 Annual Report, pp. 48.
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Realized versus unrealized gains: 2000 

15.514 Summer 2003 
Session 12 
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For financial data, see "Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' 
Equity" and "Consolidated Statements of Income" portions of Intel 
Corporation's 2000 Annual Report, pp. 21 and 18, respectively.
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Marketable Securities in other countries


!	 Canada: LCM for investments classified as current assets; 
historical cost for noncurrent assets, but recognize 
“permanent” declines in value 

!	 Mexico: Carry marketable securities at net realizable value, 
report gains/losses in the income statement; LCM for other 
investments 

!	 Japan: LCM for marketable securities 
!	 Others: Typically either LCM or mark-to-market, 

exclusively 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Summary: Marketable Securities and Valuation

Adjustments


!	 Valuation adjustment necessary when changes in market 
values are objectively measurable 

!	 Lower of cost or market applied to inventory valuation 
!	 Mark-to-market accounting for marketable securities 
! Disclosure vs. Recognition in mark-to-market accounting: 

< Not all gains and losses are reported in the income 
statement 

< Unrealized gains and losses are part of comprehensive 
income 

!	 A compromise GAAP: a “compromised” GAAP, too? 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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15.514 SUMMER 2003 

SESSION 12 
MARKETABLE SECURITIES AND VALUATION ADJUSTMENTS 

Objectives: 
1. 	Understand when accounting departs from the “transactions-based” model and       

towards market-driven valuations 
2. 	Illustrate the role of judgment in applying the LCM rule for inventory 
3. 	Understand how marketable securities are valued on companies’ Balance Sheets 
4. 	Understand the Income Statement effects of valuation adjustments 

Reading Assignment 
Pratt: Chapter 8, through p. 332. 

Intel: pp. 24, 27-28 


Class Preparation Questions 
1. 	 When should market values be used in the valuation of assets and liabilities in the 

Balance Sheet? 
2. 	 Are there cash flow effects of the "mark-to-market" rule? 
3. 	 The former GAAP requires lower-of-cost-or-market in the accounting for marketable  

securities, applied on a portfolio basis. If managers have the incentive to increase  
      earnings, what behavior is induced by this rule? How does "mark-to-market" mitigate  

this behavior? 
4. 	 The new GAAP gives discretion to managers on how marketable securities are 

classified, based on managers' intent. Although most securities are marked-to-market, 
this new GAAP still allows securities (in particular, debt securities) to be carried at 
historical cost. Given this discretion in classification, does the new rule improve the 
ability of accounting to measure firm performance? 

5. 	 What was the market value of the Available for Sale securities held by Intel at the end 
of 2001?  What was the original cost to Intel?  What was the tax effect of the 
appreciation/depreciation? 

Optional Problems 
P7-4, c); E8-2, E8-6, P8-5, P8-6, ID8-8 
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Session 13 
Class Preparation Questions 

The case preparation questions for "Accounting for Frequent Fliers" can be found on page 3 of 
the case. All questions should be prepped with the following modifications: 

Part 1 
(a) Do not worry about calculating the exact cost differences between the methods, just get a
basic idea of the magnitudes involved. 
(b) Decide on a method, but you do not need to perform any calculations.
(c) No modifications.

Part 2 
(a) - (c) No modifications
(d) No calculations necessary. However, you should identify the appropriate accounts that would
be affected and the signs (e.g. +Cash = +Retained Earnings) 
(e) No modifications

For current liabilities:
 What kind of current liabilities does Intel have? What types of contingencies does it disclose? 
How much did Intel accrue to cover contingencies? 
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Current Liabilities


!	 Obligations that must be discharged in a short period of time 
(generally less than one year) 

!	 Examples: 
< Accounts payable 
< Short-term borrowings 
< Current portion of long-term debt (portion that requires the use 

of current assets)

< Deposits

< Warranties

< Deferred Revenues / Income


15.514 2003 
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Contingencies


 Resolution of uncertainty
 Gain contingency Loss contingency 
Acquisition of asset Loss or impairment of asset

 Reduction of liability Incurrence of liability 

15.514 2003 
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Accounting guidelines on contingencies


The accounting treatment of a contingency depends on whether the 
contingency is: 

Probable - the future event is likely to occur 
Reasonably possible - the chance of occurrence of the future 

event (or events) is more than remote but less than likely 
Remote - the chance of occurrence of the future event (or events) 

is slight 

In addition, the amount of the gain or loss must be reasonably 
estimated. 
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Loss Contingencies


Measurable Not Measurable 
Probable Accrue Disclose in notes 
Reasonably possible Disclose in notes Disclose in notes 
Remote None required, but note permitted 

Accrual of loss contingency:

 A = L + E
 Accrued liability Loss on Contingency 
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Gain contingencies


Measurable Not Measurable


Probable Accrue in unusual Disclose, but avoid
 circumstances, else disclose misleading inferences 

Reasonably 
possible  Disclose but avoid misleading inferences 

Remote Disclosure is not recommended 
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Disclosure: An Example


Archer Daniels Midland Company, 2002 Annual Report 
For this quote, see "Note 12 - Antitrust Investigation and Related Litigation"
on pp. 41 of the Archer Daniels Midland Company's 2002 
Annual Report, available at their web site, http://www.admworld.com.
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15.514 SUMMER 2003 

SESSION 13 
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENCIES AND AN INTRODUCTION TO LONG-TERM 
DEBT 

Objectives 
1. 	 Understand the nature and reporting requirement of short-term liabilities 
2. 	 Illustrate the trade-off between reliability and relevance of accounting numbers in 

the accounting for contingencies 
3.	 Understand the time value of money and the mechanics of present value  


calculations 


Reading Assignment 
Pratt: Chapter 10 

Intel: pp. 27 

CP: Accounting for Frequent Flyers


Class Preparation Questions 
See class server for "Accounting for Frequent Fliers" questions. 
For current liabilities: 

What kind of current liabilities does Intel have? What types of contingencies does 
it disclose? How much did Intel accrue to cover contingencies? 

Optional Problems 
E10-10, P10-2, P10-5, ID10-1, ID10-3 
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Long-Term Debt


Objectives:


!	 Extend our understanding of valuation methods beyond 
simple present value calculations. 

•Understand the terminology of long-term debt
Par value 
Discount vs. Premium 
Mortgages 

!	 Practice bookkeeping for debt issuance, interest accruals, 
periodic payments, and debt retirement. 

!	 Understand how long-term debt affects the financial 
statements over time. 
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Valuation Concepts


Annuities 
Ordinary Annuity (annuity in arrears) - payments occur at the end of the 
period 
Annuity due (annuity in advance) - payments occur at the beginning of the 
period 

What is the FV of a $100 ordinary annuity at the end of 3 years at 8%? 
0 1 2 3 
|---------------------------|---------------------------|----------------------------| 

A general formula: 

FV(a) = {[(1+r)N - 1]*[1/r]}*Fixed Period Cash Flow 
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Valuation Concepts


What is the PV of a 3 year $100 ordinary annuity at 8%? 
0 1 2 3 
|---------------------------|---------------------------|----------------------------| 

A General Formula:

PV(a) = {[1 - (1+r)-N]*[1/r]}* Fixed Period Cash Flow


Note: A perpetuity is an annuity that goes on forever. As N approaches infinity, the formula

for PV(a) becomes [1/r]*Fixed Period Cash Flow


If you were to receive $100 a year forever, the PV of that stream of payments, given r = 8%,

is 100/.08 = 1,250.

If you were to receive $100 a year for 50 years, the PV of that stream of payments, given r =

8%, is 1,223.35. Why is the difference so small?
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Bonds - Terminology


Par value - stated or face value of the bond; the amount due at maturity 
Market value - the value assigned to the bond by investors 

Three interest rates are relevant to bond accounting: 
Coupon rate -the rate used to determine the periodic cash payments 
(if any) 

(Current) Market interest rate - the rate used to determine the 
current market value of the bond. The market rate is based upon 
market conditions and the risk characteristics of the borrower 

Effective interest rate - the market rate at issuance, used to 
determine the interest expense and the book value of the liability 
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Bonds - An Introduction


If at issuance the market rate = coupon rate then market value = par value. The 
bond is said to sell at par. When a bond sells at par its coupon payment is equal to 
its interest expense. 

While we will primarily focus on bonds sold at par, there are two other 
possibilities: 

If at issuance the market rate > coupon rate then market value < par value. The 
difference between market value and par value is called the discount on the bond 
and its coupon payment is less than its interest expense. An extreme case of this is 
the zero-coupon bond. 

If at issuance the market rate < coupon rate then market value > par value. The 
difference between market value and par value is called the premium on the bond 
and its coupon payment is more than its interest expense. 
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Bonds


Consider a loan with proceeds of $10,000 initiated on 1/1/99.  The market interest 
rate is 6% and final payment is to be made at the end of the third year (12/31/01). 
What annual payments are required under the following three alternatives? 

I. Yearly payments of interest at the end of each year and repayment of principal at 
the end of the third year (typical bond terms). 

II. Three equal payments at the end of each year (mortgage / new car loan terms).

III. A single payment of principal and interest at the end of year 3 (Zero-Coupon 
bond). 
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Bonds - alternative payment streams


I II III

 coupon mortgage  zero


End of Year 1 


End of Year 2


End of Year 3


Undiscounted 
sum of payments 
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Accounting for a Regular Bond - at par


Example I (coupon)
 A = L + E

 Cash Principal -Discount 
1999 10,000 10,000


Periodic payments
 Cash Principal -Discount + RE 

1999 (600) (600) int. exp. 
2000 (600) (600) int. exp. 
2001 (600) (600) int. exp.

 (10,000) (10,000)
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Accounting for a Mortgage


Example II (mortgage)
 A = L + E

 Cash Mortgage 
1999 10,000 10,000


Periodic payments
 Cash Mortgage + RE 

1999 (3,741) (3,141) (600) int. exp. 
2000 (3,741) (3,329) (412) int. exp. 
2001 (3,741) (3,530) (211) int. exp. 

15.514 2003 
Session 14 

9


www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

189
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Accounting for a Zero-Coupon Bond


Example III (zero coupon)
 A = L + E
 Cash Principal -Discount 

1999 10,000 11,910 1,910


Periodic payments
 Cash Principal -Discount + RE 

1999 0 (600) (600) int. exp. 
2000 0 (636) (636) int. exp. 
2001 0 (674) (674) int. exp.

 (11,910) (11,910)
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Bonds - disclosures


Balance sheet 
current portion of L-T debt in current liabilities 
long-term debt 

Income Statement 
interest expense 

Indirect SCF 
Operations - interest accruals not yet paid, amortization of

 discount/premium

Investing - purchase / sale of AFS debt

Financing - proceeds, repayment

+ supplemental disclosure of cash paid for interest 

Notes 
details on all of the above 
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Bonds - disclosures

Nextel Communications (partial footnote) 
7.Long-Term Debt, Capital Lease and Finance Obligations

(dollars in millions) 

Domestic 
10.65% senior redeemable discount notes due 2007, 
net of unamortized discount of $59 and $136 
9.75% senior serial redeemable discount notes due 2007, 
net of unamortized discount of $86 and $180 
4.75% convertible senior notes due 2007 
9.95% senior serial redeemable discount notes due 2008, 
net of unamortized discount of $168 and $303 
12% senior serial redeemable notes due 2008, 
net of unamortized discount of $3 and $4 
9.375% senior serial redeemable notes due 2009 
5.25% convertible senior notes due 2010 
9.5% senior serial redeemable notes due 2011, 
including a fair value hedge adjustment of $11 
6% convertible senior notes due 2011 
Bank credit facility, interest payable quarterly at an 
adjusted rate calculated based either on the U.S. 
prime rate or London Interbank Offered Rate, or 
LIBOR, (4.02% to 10.44% - 2001; 8.63% to 10.44% - 2000) 
Other 

Total domestic long-term debt 
Less domestic current portion 

December 31, 

2001 2002 

$781 $704 

1,043 949 
354 354 

1,459 1,324 

297 296 
2,000 2,000 
1,150 1,150 

1,261 -
1,000 -

4,500 4,500 
19 1 

13,864 11,278 
(49) -

13,815 $11,278 
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Does the Balance Sheet Represent the Market

Value of Debt


Footnote from Shoney’s 1999 Annual Report 
Oct. 31,1999 Oct. 25,1998

 Subordinated zero coupon debentures,
 due April 2004 (face value $179,299,000) 122,520,712 112,580,014 

What is the effective interest rate of the debt?  
(122,520,712/112,580,014 -1) = 8.83% 

What is the market interest rate of the debt?
 The WSJ (11/1/99) reports Shoney’s debt to be selling for 210 per thousand, 

with 5 years until maturity.  1000 = 210*(1+r)5, 4.762(1/5)= 1+r, r=.366, or 
36.6%, more than four times the interest rate used in the financial statements. 
How could this be? 
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Shoney's Statement of Cash Flows

Effects of Discount Amortization


 -----------------------------------
Years Ended October 31 October 25 

1999 1998 
-----------------------------------

Operating activities
 Net loss $ (28,826,398) $ (107,703,920) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net
 cash provided by operating activities:

41,162,155 49,340,252 

amortization on the 
zeros (which is 
equal to the annual 
interest expense on 
the zeros) is a non-
cash expense and is 

reconcile to OCF 

The annual discount 

added back to NI to 

Depreciation and amortization 
Interest expense on zero coupon
 convertible debentures and other noncash
 charges 16,329,932 18,508,713 
Deferred income taxes (1,890,000) 38,088,000 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
 equipment (20,230,756) (9,417,828) 

Impairment of long-lived assets 18,424,046 48,403,158 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

 Notes and accounts receivable 1,834,878 1,966,717 
Inventories (492,529) 1,236,546 
Prepaid expenses (1,676,202) 1,450,081 
Accounts payable (10,850,662) 2,524,508 
Accrued expenses (7,324,161) 11,240,256 
Federal and state income taxes 1,612,557 
Litigation settlement 14,500,000 3,500,000
 Refundable income taxes 14,005,359 (9,928,809) 
Deferred income and other liabilities (444,616) 4,243,692 

--------------- --------------

Net cash provided by operating activities 34,521,046 55,063,923 
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Early Retirement of Debt for Less than Book Value


Example I (zero coupon)
 A = L + E
 Cash Principal -Discount 

EB 99 11,910 1,310


You repurchase the bonds in the open market at the start of 2000 (2 
years to maturity) when the market rate is 7% for $10,403 (11,910/1.072)

 A = L + RE
 Cash Principal -Discount

[Gain on retirement(10,403) (11,910) (1,310) 197 of debt on I/S] 

The gain or loss on early retirement of debt is reported as an 
extraordinary item on the income statement (see Pratt, p. 569). 
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Early Retirement of Debt for More than Book Value


Example I (zero coupon)

 A = L + E

 Cash 
 Principal -Discount


EB 99 
 11,910 1,310


You repurchase the bonds in the open market at the start of 2000 (2 
years to maturity) when the market rate is 5% for $10,803 (11,910/1.052)

 A = L + RE
 Cash Principal -Discount

[Loss on retirement(10,803) (11,910) (1,310) (203) of debt on I/S] 

The gain or loss on early retirement of debt is reported as an

extraordinary item on the income statement (see Pratt, p. 569). 
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Bonds - restrictions on debt

TCBY


•	 Borrower will at all times maintain a ration of Current Assets to Current 
Liabilities … that is greater than 2.0… a Profitability ration greater than 1.5 
…[defined as] the ratio of Net Income for the immediately preceding 
period of 12 calendar months to Current Maturities of Long Tern Debt … a 
Fixed Coverage Ratio greater than 1.0 … [defined as] the ratio of Net 
Income … plus noncash Charges to Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 
... plus cash dividends … plus Replacement CapEx of the Borrower 

•	 [Borrower will not] sell, lease, transfer, or otherwise dispose of any assets 
… except for the sale of inventory … and disposition of obsolete 
equipment …[to] repurchase the stock of TCBY 

•	 [Borrower agrees it will not take on new loans if] the aggregate amount of 
all such loans … would exceed 25% of the consolidated Tangible Net 
Worth of the Borower... 
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15.514 SUMMER 2003 

SESSION 14 
LONG-TERM DEBT 

Objectives: 
1.	 Understand the terminology of long-term debt including par value, stated versus 

effective interest rate, discounts, premiums, and mortgages. 
2. 	 Understand how long-term debt affects the financial statements over time 

Reading Assignment: 
Pratt: Chapter 11, through p. 484; Appendix B “The Time Value of Money”  
(p. 689+) 
Intel: p. 27 


Class Preparation Questions
 None. 

Optional Problems 
E11-3, E11-5, E11-7, E11-9, E11-19 
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Leases


Objectives 

Understand the rationale for leasing and the distinction between 
operating and capital leases. 

Understand the Income Statement and Balance Sheet differences 
between operating and capital leases from the lessee’s perspective. 
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The Nature of Leases


A lease is an agreement conveying the right to use property, plant, or equipment 
usually for a stated period of time. 

The owner of the property is referred to as the lessor, and the renter is the lessee.

 Lease

 ______________________________________________________


 Rent Purchase


What is the economic rationale for leasing rather than purchasing an asset?


What is the economic rationale for capitalizing a lease?


What is the accounting criteria for capitalizing a lease?


How objectively can each lease criterion be applied?  What judgement enters into

each assessment?
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Economic Rationale for Leases


Operational advantages to the lessee: 
Leasing ready-to-use equipment may be more attractive if the asset 
requires lengthy preparation and set-up. 
Leasing avoids having to own the asset that will be required only 
seasonally, temporarily or sporadically. 
Leasing for short periods provides protection against obsolescence. 

Financial advantages to the lessee: 
Lease payments can be tailored to suit the lessee's cash flows (up to 
100% financing, instead of the 80% limit by banks). 
Properly structured leases may be “off-balance sheet”, avoiding 
debt-covenant restrictions. 
Leasing provides tax advantages from accelerated depreciation and 
interest expense. 
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Disadvantages to Leasing


Disadvantages to the lessee:

Leased ready-to-use equipment may be of lower quality than 
custom built, resulting in lower quality products and lower 
sales. 
Seasonal leasing may affect equipment availability and pricing. 
Premium must be paid for the protection against obsolescence. 

Disadvantages to financial statement users: 
Off-balance sheet financing hides the true leverage of the firm. 
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Economic substance of leases


Lease 
________________________________________________

 Rent Purchase 

Operating lease - lessee rents the property.  Lessee accrues rent expense. 

Capital lease  - lessee essentially owns the property. Lessee records the 
leased asset in the balance sheet (i.e. capitalized) together with the 
corresponding lease obligation. 

Where do we draw the line between renting and “essential ownership?” 
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Accounting criteria for lease capitalization


A lease is considered a capital lease if ANY of the following 
conditions apply (SFAS 13): 

1.	 Essential transfer of ownership at the end of lease term 
•	 No payment for leased asset, or 
•	 Bargain purchase option (BPO) - payment below market value after 

the lease term 

2. Minimum present value of lease payments (including BPO, if any) 
at least 90% of asset's market value 

3.	Lease term is 75% of assets remaining useful life 
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Operating and Capital Leases: An Example


GE Capital leases an airplane to Delta Airlines. 

Assume 	 1) The airplane has a current cost of $30,000,000
 2) The expected life equals the lease term of 20 years
 3) The salvage value at the end of 20 years is $0
 4) Delta’s borrowing rate is 16% 

What payment would GE Capital require from Delta at the end of each year?

 Lease Payment = $30,000,000 / (Annuity Factor, 20 periods, 16%)


 = $30,000,000 / 5.9288
 1-(1+r)-n

 r
= $5,060,000 per year 
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Accounting for operating leases--Lessee’s Books


An operating lease is recorded as a rental of an asset in the financial statements. 

When the lease aggreement is signed and lessee begins using the asset:
 A = L + E 

No entry 

During the lease (as payments are made): 
Cash Retained Earnings


 (PP) 
 (PP) (rent exp) 

PP = periodic lease payment 
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Operating Leases:  An Example

Delta transactions 

If treated as an operating lease 
When the lease aggreement is signed and lessee begins using the asset:

 A = L + E

 No entry


During the lease (as payments are made): 
Cash Retained Earnings 

Y1 (5060) (5060) (rent exp) 
Y2 (5060) (5060) (rent exp) 
Y3 (5060) (5060) (rent exp) 

Y20 (5060) (5060) (rent exp) 
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Accounting for capital leases--Lessee’s Books

A capital lease is recorded as an acquisition an asset with a 100% debt financing in the 
financial statements. 

When the lease aggreement is signed and lessee begins using the asset: 
Leased Property Lease Obligation

 PVL PVL 

During the lease (as payments are made) 
Cash        -Acc.  Depr. Lease Obligation Retained Earnings

 (PP) (PP - Int) (Int) (int. exp.) 
Depr (Depr) (dep. exp.) 

PVL = present value of periodic lease payments = (PV of ordinary annuity, n payments, r %) * PP 
PP = periodic lease payment 
Int = beginning lease liability * r%, 

beginning lease liability = present value of remaining payments at r% 

Depr = depreciation expense 
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Capital Leases:  An Example

Delta transactions: 
If treated as an capital lease 
When the lease aggreement is signed and lessee begins using the asset: 

Leased Property(A) Lease Obligation(L)
 30,000 30,000 

During the lease (as payments are made): 
Cash(A) Leased Property(A)  -Acc Depr.(A) Lease Obligation(L) Retained Earnings(SE) 

Y1 

EBY1 
Y2 

EBY2 
Y3 

EBY3 
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Capital v Operating Lease: I/S Effects


7000


6000


5000


4000


$

3000


2000


1000


0 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
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Capital v Operating Lease: B/S Effects


Pattern annual of asset and liability values over time for capital lease: 

35000


30000


25000


20000


$

15000


10000


5000 

Year 
0


0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20


“S.E. effect” of 

treatment 

treatment. 

liability book value 

asset book value 

capital lease 

S.E. 8,298 lower under 
capital lease treatment 
in year 8 compared to 
operating lease 

15.514 2003


Session 15


13


www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

211
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Financial Statement Disclosures


Assume this is Delta’s only lease and they use capital lease treatment. How would 
their lease footnote look at the end of year 8? 
Years Ending Capital Leases 
Y9 5,060 
Y10 5,060 
Y11 5,060 
Y12 5,060 
Y13 5,060 
Y14 and after 35,420 (5,060 x 7) 
Total minimum lease payments 60,720 
Less: amounts representing interest 34,422 (60,720 - 26,298 (below)) 
Present value of future minimum 
capital lease payments 26,298 (5060 x (PVA,12,16%) 
Less: current obligations under capital leases               852 
Long-term capital lease obligations  25,446 (26,298 - 852) 
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Financial statement disclosures-- Target


Future Minimum Lease Payments 

(millions) 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
After 2004 
Total future minimum lease payments 

Operating Leases Capital Leases 
$ 113 $ 22 

105 21 
96 21 
80 19 
70 18 

634 124 
$ 225 


Less: interest* 
 (90 ) 
Present value of minimum lease payments 

$ 1,098 
(302 ) 
796$ $ 135 ** 

*Calculated using the interest rate at inception for each lease (the weighted average 
interest rate was 8.8 percent). 
** Includes current portion of $10 million. 

This information is rarely 
given in the footnote. 
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Financial statement disclosures-- Target


Based on information in the lease footnote, what value does Target show for lease 
liability on its Balance sheet? 

The footnote says Target’s borrowing rate is 8.8 percent.  Could this amount be 
independently computed? 
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Financial statement disclosures-- Target


Why might a user wish to know the effect on Target’s balance sheet and income 
statement of capitalizing the leases mentioned in this note? 

How could a user derive an estimate of the reporting effects of capitalizing 
leases? 
What financial statement ratios are affected by the lease classification? 

Assume that the difference between the future minimum payments after 2004 
will be $70M per year for 9 years.  In addition, assume that Target’s borrowing 
rate is 9.0% and that payments occur at the end of each year. 

Year Future payment 9% PV(A) factor Beg.2000 value
 2000 $ 113 0.91743 $ 103.67
 2001 105 0.84168 88.38
 2002 96 0.77218 74.13
 2003 80 0.70843 56.67
 2004 70 0.64993 45.50
 2005-2013 70/year 0.64993x5.99525 272.75

 641.10

Note that this amount is smaller than the 796 computed by

Target. The 796 assumes that all payments after 2004 occur in

2005 and that all payments are made in the middle of the year.
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Analysis of Target Disclosures


How are financial statements of Target affected if the operating leases were 
instead classified as capital leases? 
If the additional liability is resulting from the capitalization of operating leases is 
$641, what is the book value of the associated operating leased asset?  Something 
less than $641. 

What financial ratios are affected? 
Target’s total liabilities and total equity at 2000 were $11,461 and $5,967.

 Debt-to-equity ratio = 11,461/5,967 . 1.92
 Debt-to-equity ratio after 
capitalization of operating leases = (11,461 + 641)/(5,967 + 449 - 641) 

. 2.10 

Assuming the BV asset = 70% of BV liab. 
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Leasing and Debt Covenants


TCBY


[Borrower agrees that it will not] create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any 
Lien, encumbrance, or charge of any kind (including any lease required to 
be capitalized under GAAP) upon any of its properties and/or assets other 
than Permitted Liens. 
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15.514 SUMMER 2003 

SESSION 15 
LEASES 

Objectives 
1. Understand the rationale for leasing, and the distinction between operating and 

capital leases 
2.	 Understand the Income Statement and Balance Sheet differences between  

operating and capital leases. (Note: we will focus on accounting from the lessee’s   
perspective, not the lessor.) 

Game Plan & Class Pedagogy 
Lecture and directed discussion. 

Reading Assignment 
Pratt: Chapter 11, p. 484 to end, review Appendix B “The Time Value of Money” 
(p. 689+) 

Class Preparation Questions 
1. 	 What are the operational and the financial advantages to a company to lease as 

oppose to purchase PP&E?  What are some disadvantages? 
2. 	 What are the advantages and disadvantages of accounting for a lease as an 


operating lease versus a capital lease? 

3. 	 What are the accounting criteria for a capital lease? 
4. 	 Does Intel lease its PP&E under capital leases or operating leases?  What was 

Intel’s lease expense in 2001?  What is Intel’s minimum commitment under all its 
non-cancelable leases in 2002? 

Optional Problems 
E11-8, E11-5, P11-15, ID11-6 
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Managerial Accounting


Change Methods 

Make or Buy 

Product Mix 

Production 

Pricing 

Decision 
Making 

Financial 
Reporting 

Costing 

Profit and 
Cost Centers 

Variance 
Analysis 

Budgeting 

Discontinue 

(Control) 
Performance Evaluation 

What are the Goals? 
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BASIC COST TERMS


Cost 
A sacrifice of resources.  Distinguish from “expense” 

Cost Object 
Any activity or item for which a separate measurement of costs is desired. 

Cost objects are the “something” in the statement:  “We need the cost of 
‘something’”! 

Cost Driver 
Any factor whose change “causes” a change in the total cost of a related cost 
object. 

Note:  Cost drivers can be factors other than volume 
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BASIC COST TERMS (contd.)


Direct Costs 
Costs that can be traced to a given cost object (product, department, etc.) in an 
economically feasible way. 

Indirect Costs 
Costs that cannot be traced to a given cost object in an economically feasible 
way.  These costs are also known as “overhead” or “burden.” 

Cost Assignment 
Direct costs are traced to a cost object. 
Indirect costs are allocated or assigned to a cost object. 

Product Costs 
All costs that “attach” to the units that are produced and are not reported as 
expenses until the goods are sold (e.g., direct materials, direct labor, applied 
overhead). 
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BASIC COST TERMS (contd.)


Period costs 
Costs that must be charged against income in the period incurred and cannot 
be inventoried (e.g., selling and administrative expenses). 

Manufacturing Costs 
The sum of direct materials, direct labor, and indirect manufacturing costs 

Unit Costs 
Total cost of units divided by units produced. 

Controllable Costs 
Any cost that is primarily subject to the influence of a given manager of a 
given responsibility center for a given time period. 
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COST BEHAVIOR


Variable Costs 
Costs that change directly in proportion to changes in the related cost driver 

Fixed Costs 
Costs that remain unchanged for a given time period regardless of changes in the 
related cost driver. 

Other Common Functions for Cost Behavior 
•Semivariable Costs (part variable and part fixed) 
•Step costs 

Major Assumptions Needed to Define Fixed and Variable Costs 
•Cost object, Time span, Linear functional form 
•Relevant range- the band of cost driver activity in which a specific relationship 
between a cost and a driver holds. 
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The “Ins” of Inventory Accounting


What costs are assigned to inventory as products are 
manufactured? 

GAAP requires Full Absorption Costing: the products fully 
absorb all manufacturing costs, including:

 Variable manufacturing Costs: Material, Labor 
Fixed manufacturing Costs: Overhead 


Results in unitizing fixed costs: convert total fixed costs (TFC) 
to a unit cost by allocating TFC to the units produced. 

15.514 Summer 2003 

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

224
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Traditional Costing System


Product 
Costs 

Traced 
directly 

Traced using 

machine hrs 

Direct Costs 
Direct Labor 

Direct Materials 

Overhead Costs 
Indirect Labor 

Indirect Materials 
Depreciation allocation base 

eg direct labor hrs, 
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Example of Product Costing


Electron, Inc. produces 10,000 units in one month. 

•Variable manufacturing costs are: 
• $6/unit for material, 
• $1/unit for direct labor, and 
• $1/unit for variable overhead. 

•Fixed mfg overhead is $50,000/month. 

•Unit costs are $8 (variable) + $50,000/10,000 (fixed) or $13/unit. 


•How do these costs flow through Inventory Accounts? 
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Product Costing Events


First half of November:


11/ 1:  Purchase and receive $60,000 of material (Nov. supply) 

11/ 2:  Requisition half of the materials to the factory floor ($30,000) 

11/ 5:  Apply labor to the materials ($5,000) 

11/ 7:  Recognize depreciation expense for the month ($50,000) 

11/ 8:  Apply variable OH to the materials ($5,000) 

11/ 9:  Transfer 5,000 completed calculators from WIP to FG Inventory 

11/10:  Ship 2,000 completed calculators to customer


15.514 Summer 2003 

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

227
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



How do Costs Flow through Inventory

Accounts?


Cash Mat's Inv 
Raw 

WIP Inv Inv 
Goods 

Fin 

PP&E 
Net 

= Payable 
Wages 

RE 

Buy Materials -60 60 
= 

maerials to factory 
Requisition half of -30 30 

= 

Apply labor 5 
= 

5 

depreciation) 
(PP&E 
Apply fixed OH 

50 -50 
= 

Apply variable OH -5 5 
= 

inventory 
Transfer to FG -65 65 

= 

Sell 2,000 units -26 
= 

-26 
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Key Strategic Management Decisions


! Pricing 
! Dropping unprofitable products 
! Re-engineering/restructuring 
! Making new investments 
! Mergers & acquisitions 
! Targeting customer groups 
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Cost Information for Strategic Decisions


! Product Costs 
– Pricing 
– Dropping unprofitable products 

! Process/Business Costs 
– Re-engineering/restructuring 
– Making new investments 
– Mergers & acquisitions 

! Customer Costs 
– Targeting customer groups 
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Activity-Based Costing System


Product 
CostsActivities 

that 
drive 
overhd 

Direct Costs 
Direct Labor 

Direct Materials 

Overhead Costs 

Indirect Labor 
Indirect Materials 

Depreciation 
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Examples of Overhead Activities 


! Purchase order processing 
! Receiving/Inventorying materials 
! Inspecting materials 
! Processing accounts payable 
! Facility maintenance 
! Scheduling production 
! Customer complaints 
! Quality inspection/testing 
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Typical Activity Cost Drivers


! Number of alteration notices per product 
! Units produced 
! Number of receipts for materials/parts 
! Stockroom transfers 
! Direct labor hours 
! Set-up hours 
! Inspection hours 
! Facility hours 
! Number of customer complaints 
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ABC Example


Dialglow Corporation manufactures travel clocks and watches.  Overhead 
costs are currently allocated using direct labor hours, but the controller has 
recommended an activity-based costing system using the following data:

 Activity Level 
Activity Cost Driver Cost Clocks Watches 
Production Setup No. of Setups $120,000 10 15 

Material Handling 
& Requisition No. of Parts 30,000  18 36 

Packaging 
& Shipping #Units  Shipped 60,000 45,000 75,000 

Total Overhead $210,000 
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ABC Example, contd.


Existing Cost System:


Allocate Total OH based on labor hours 
(35,000 hours for travel clocks; 105,000 hours for watches.) 

OH Rate: 

$210,000/140,000 hours = $1.50/hour 


OH cost per Travel Clock:  
($1.50/hr * 35,000 hrs) / 45,000 units = $1.167 

OH cost per Watch:  
($1.50/hr * 105,000 hrs) / 75,000 units = $2.10 
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ABC Example, contd.


Allocation of : 
Production Setup Costs: $120,000/(10+15) setups = $4,800/setup 
Material Handl’g Costs: $30,000/(18+36) part numbers = $555.56/part no. 
Packing/Shipping Costs: $60,000/(45,000+75,000) units = $0.50/unit shipped 

Resulting ABC-based Product Costs: Clocks Watches 
Production Setup $48,000 $72,000 
Material Handling  10,000 20,000 
Packing/Shipping  22,500 37,500 

Total $80,500  $129,500 

Per Unit  $1.79  $1.73 
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15.514, Summer 2003 

Session 16 
Introduction to Cost Concepts 

Objectives 
1. Introduce commonly used cost terminology. 
2. Understand how organizations historically have computed product costs. 
3. Reinforce how product costs affect the financial statements. 
4. Begin to understand how organizations use product costs to support decision-making. 

Game Plan & Class Pedagogy 
Mainly lecture. 

Reading Assignment 
CP: A Brief Introduction to Cost Accounting 

Activity Accounting: Another Way to Measure Costs 
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15.514 Summer 2003 

Session 17 
Activity-Based Costing 

Objectives 
1. Computation of product costs using ABC 
2. Understand the role of judgment: how are cost pools and cost drivers determined? 
3. Link cost data to strategic choices 

Game Plan & Class Pedagogy 
Case discussion. 

Reading Assignment 
CP: Siemens Electric Motor Works 

Class Preparation Questions 
Focus your group’s attention on the qualitative questions (1 -6). Attempt to answer questions 
7 and 8 before coming to class, but don’t invest excessive time on this task, as we will work 
through the computational issues together in class. Thinking about the issues and the costing 
approaches should take precedence over “getting the right numbers.”

 1.	 What were the competitive conditions facing EMW in the late 1970s?
 2.	 What change in strategy did EMW’s managers undertake in response to these conditions?
 3.	 How did EMW’s new strategy change the way products were manufactured?
 4.	 Describe the 1970s costing system at EMW.
 5.	 Describe the 1980s costing system (PROKASTA) at EMW.
 6.	 How do the two systems differ in their treatment of costs for order processing and special 

components?
 7.	 Calculate the cost of the five orders in Exhibit 4 under the traditional and PROKASTA 

cost systems. Hint: first compute the PROKASTA costs of processing an order and 
handling a special component.

 8.	 Compare traditional and PROKASTA costs for Motor A in Exhibit 4 if 1 unit, 10 units, 
20 units, or 100 units are ordered.

 9.	 If you were a manager at EMW, how might you use the new cost system to make better 
decisions? 
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15.514 Summer 2003 

Session 18 
Moving Beyond ABC 

Objectives 
1.	 Reinforce knowledge of Activity-Based Costing methods 
2.	 Make the linkage between the economics of a firm’s investment decision and how that investment is 

reflected in product costs 

Game Plan & Class Pedagogy 
Case discussion 

Reading Assignment 
CP:	 One Cost System Isn’t Enough


Seligram ETO (case)


Class Preparation Questions 
A Can be completed in small groups. 
A Problem Set 5 due at the start of class. Hand in written answers to questions 1, 2, 4, and 5 at the 

start of class. Your answers to questions 3 and 6 need not be handed in, but you should discuss 
them with your group prior to the class discussion. 

A Each team member is advised to keep a copy of the group’s answers for use during the class 
discussion 

1.	 What business decisions at Seligram does the cost system support? In this context, what caused the 
existing cost system at Seligram (ETO) to fail? 

2.	  Calculate the reported costs of the five components described in Exhibit 6 under: 
a.	 the existing system, 
b.	 the system proposed by the accounting manager, and 
c.	 the system provided by the consultant. 

3.	 Explain conceptually (and briefly) the dynamics that cause the movements you see in the costs 
calculated above. For example, why do costs for certain components increase when moving from 
alternative (a) to (b) but decrease from (b) to (c), while other costs increase from (a) to (b) to (c)? 

4.	 Which of the three cost systems do you think is most appropriate? Why? What are some potential 
disadvantages of the system you would recommend? 

5.	 Would you treat the new machine as a separate cost center or as part of the main room? Why? If you 
were to treat it separately, how would you allocate its costs? 

6.	 Use the course framework and challenges to further analyze the case. 
a.	 What is the accounting decision? 
b.	 Describe the related economic activity. 
c.	 What users are affected by the accounting decision? 
d.	 What factors influence the decision? 
e.	 What decisions are users making that depend on the accounting decision? 
f.	 What are the consequences of users’ decisions on Seligram? 
g.	 What real-life computation challenge is related to the accounting decision? 

Note: To answer question 5, you may need to be familiar with the Double-Declining Balance (DDB) 
approach to determining annual depreciation charges. Here’s all you need to know: The new machine has 
a purchase price of $2MM, an 8-year life, and no salvage value. Hence, DDB will result in depreciation 
of $500K, $375K, $281.25K, and $210.9K in years 1 through 4, respectively. For each of years 5 through 
8, depreciation would be $158.2K. 
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15.514 Summer 2003 

Session 19 
Managerial Accounting and Financial Reporting 

Objectives 
1.	 Understand how internal reporting can affect the incentives of managers 
2.	 Understand how managerial incentives can affect financial reports. 

Game Plan & Class Pedagogy 
Case discussion 

Reading Assignment 
CP: Scovill Inc, NuTone Housing Group 

Class Preparation Questions 
- Can be completed in small groups 
- Problem Set 6 due at the start of class: Hand in answers to questions 1, 2, and 6. You should 

discuss the remaining questions with your group prior to class discussion. 
- Each group member is advised to keep a copy of the group’s answers for use during the class 

discussion. 

1.	 Consider the following events at the NuTone division of Scovill: 

In the past year, The NuTone division built 1,000 units of a particular 
model of paddle fan. The standard (and actual) direct material cost was 
$20/unit. The standard cost for a direct labor hour was $8.00. Standard 
direct labor hours for this level of production were 1,200; however, 
actual direct labor hours used were 400. The workers were paid an 
average hourly rate of $10 (including incentives) because the average 
direct labor efficiency rate was 300%. The overhead rate in the plant 
was 150% of direct labor. 

Quarterly sales of this model were 100, 125, 150, and 125 units, 
respectively, at a constant price of $60 each, for total annual sales of 
500 units. Production volume was steady at 250 units per quarter. 

At year-end, a physical inventory count was taken. It revealed 400 units 
left in inventory; these were determined to have an average cost of $30 
each. 

a.	 Compute the standard cost/unit that NuTone would use to account for the production and sale of 
this model over the course of the year. 

b.	 Compute revenue, Cost of goods sold, gross profit margin, and ending inventory for each of the 
first three quarters, using the standard cost you computed above. 

c.	 Make the end-of-year adjustment required by the inventory count and valuation assumption. How 
does this adjustment affect reported income for the 4 th quarter and the year? 

2.	 Page 5 of the case describes Incentive Compensation (bonuses) for top management. Suppose the 
EPS target was $3.60. How much bonus would a manager receive under each of the following 
scenarios? (Briefly justify your answers.) 

a. Actual EPS is $3.65, and base salary is $60,000. 
b. Actual EPS is $3.00 and base salary is $80,000. 
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c. Actual EPS is $3.51 and base salary is $100,000. 
Comment on the pros and cons of using this type of incentive compensation scheme, i.e., what 
trade-offs must the Board of Directors evaluate when setting this plan? 

3.	 Summarize and critically evaluate the concerns raised by Bob Hager, Scovill’s new treasurer / 
controller, about NuTone’s use of overstated standard costs. 

4.	 Summarize and critically evaluate the justifications given by Jim Rankin, NuTone’s executive VP, 
for continuing the status quo. 

5.	 What, if anything, would you recommend Bob Hager do about the accounting system used in the 
NuTone division? 

6.	 Suppose you are required to arbitrate the accounting issue between Hager and Rankin and 
recommend a solution to the Board of Directors. What do you propose NuTone do, if anything? 
Justify your answer, with sufficient attention paid to countering te key arguments raised by each 
participant. Your analysis and recommendation should not exceed one page. 
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Responsibility Accounting


! The Agency Conflict in General 

! Agent works for Principal but 

< Agent is a self-interested party 
< Agent’s goals may differ from principal’s 

! Agency problem exists for two reasons: 

< Goal Incongruence 
< Agents’ actions/information are not perfectly observable 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Examples of Agency Conflicts


! Theft and fraud 
! Shirking 
! Consumption of perquisites 
! Empire-building 
! Risk Reduction 
! Horizon Problem 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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The Firm’s Organizational Problem


Benefits of Specialization <==> Agency Costs 

Methods to Reduce the Conflict 
1. Systems to measure performance 
2. Systems to reward and punish performance 
3. Systems to partition decisions rights 

Accounting’s Role in this Problem 
1. 	Responsibility Accounting 

Transfer pricing between divisions 
Performance Evaluation using Variance Analysis 

2. Compensation Contracting 
15.514 Summer 2003 
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Controllability Principle


Measure performance of sub-units based on the variables over
which they have control 
Cost Centers (ala Seligram ETO) 

Decision rights over costs, but not responsible for revenues 
Evaluated on ability to: 

Maximize output with given resources 
Minimize costs while meeting output targets 

Profit Centers 
Decision rights over costs and prices


Fixed amount of capital resources

Evaluated on profitability


Investment Centers

“Firm within a firm”


Decision rights over capital expenditures

Evaluated on ROI (profit/investment base)


15.514 Summer 2003 
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Transfer Prices


Internal price attached to units transferred from one cost
or profit center to another (recall ETO use of costs) 
Two main goals of transfer prices: 

International Taxation: allocate company profit between
two or more tax jurisdictions 

Incentives and performance measurement of profit

centers


Potential problems arise when: 
Transfer prices encourage each profit center to
maximize sub-unit profit, but 

The resulting actions decrease total enterprise profit.
15.514 Summer 2003 
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Transfer Prices 

General rules to avoid these problems


1.Transfer at outside market price if 

a. Such a price exists, i.e., $ an external market

b.Producing division is operating at capacity


2.Cost-based transfer price (< market price) if producing 
division has excess capacity 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Compensation Contracts


! Goal: Align incentives of managers with those of owners 

! Make managers better off when they take actions that make
owners better off 

! Examples: 
< Earnings-based bonus plans 
< Bonus for meeting specific objectives, such as sports team

making the playoffs 

! Key Issue: Risk-sharing and agency costs 
15.514 Summer 2003 < Reduce agency cost associated with effort


< Increase agency cost associated with risk-sharing
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Compensation Contracts: Pros and Cons


! Accounting-based contracts 
< Variables within manager’s control 
< May create incentives to manipulate income 
< Horizon problems 

! Stock-based compensation 
< Many variables affecting value aren’t controllable 
< Risk-related agency problems 
< Effects on income statement / balance sheet 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Alternative Performance Measures


!	 What’s wrong with the “old” ones? 
–	 Accounting profits don’t properly measure income and 

costs. 

!	 Residual Income - subtracts from profits a charge for capital 

! Economic Value Added = 
<  adjusted accounting income - (capital*WACC) 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Economic Value Added


! What is value? Why shareholder value? 
< Shareholders are residual claimants 

! Several competing measures have been introduced to 
measure value and value creation by firms 
< EVA is an accounting concept 
< EVA is easiest to understand 
< EVA and related concepts are mentioned a lot in the press 

(in different shapes or forms) 
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Economic Value Added: Concept


! Starting point: Market Value Added (MVA)
= Market Value (MV) - Invested Capital (IC) 

! What is the problem with MVA as a performance measure? 
< Share price 
< 'Stock' measure 

! EVA is a 'Flow' measure 
< Definition: NOPAT - Capital Charges

(NOPAT = net operating profit after taxes)
(NO relation with stock prices) 
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Balanced Scorecard


Four sets of measures 
Fast but comprehensive view of how a business is doing 

Customer perspective 
Internal Business Perspective 
Innovation and Learning Perspective 
Financial Perspective 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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Balanced Scorecard


! Customer perspective 
< Specific measures to reflect the factors that customers

value

< How do you determine the appropriate goal?

< How do you assess performance toward goals?


! Internal Business Perspective 
< Focus on critical internal operations required to satisfy

customer needs 
< Timeliness of data may be key 
< Measures should reflect employees’ actions 15.514 Summer 2003 
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Balanced Scorecard


! Innovation and Learning Perspective 
< Targets for success change over time 
< Emphasis on continuous improvement 

! Financial Perspective 
< Factors above should produce improved profits 
< What if they don’t? 

15.514 Summer 2003 
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What was our course objective?


!	 To become intelligent users of accounting information 

<	 Learn the language and techniques 

<	 Go beyond bookkeeping and computation 
–	 Use a common framework to conceptualize issues 
–	 Emphazize the simultaneity and feedback effects of 

accounting and economic decisions 
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For the readings, Pratt refers to the course textbook: Pratt, J. Financial Accounting in
an Economic Context. 5th ed. John Wiley & Sons, Inc. CP stands for Case Pack, which
includes supplemental readings and cases. Additional material is from the Intel 2002
Annual Report , which can be downloaded from their Web site.

LEC # TOPICS READINGS

1 Overview
Pratt: Chap. 1-2 (including
Appendix 1A)

2
Principles of
Accrual
Accounting

Pratt: Chap. 3-4

3

Elements of an
Annual Report
and Financial
Ratios

Pratt: Chap. 3 & 5

Intel 2002 Annual Report - all

4
Revenue
Recognition

Pratt: Chap. 6, review Chap. 3
(especially pp. 83-85) and Chap. 5
(p. 126)

Intel: Notes

5 Revenue
Recognition

Bruns Jr., William J., and Susan S.
Harmeling. Circuit City Stores, Inc
(A). Boston, MA: Harvard Business
School Publishing, 1993. Case No.
9-191-086.

6
Inventory /
Cost of Goods
Sold

Pratt: Chap. 7, Intel p. 26

CP: Understanding LIFO / FIFO

7
Long-Term
Assets /
Depreciation

Pratt: Chap. 9, Chap. 4 (pp. 118-
130)

Intel: Property, plant and
equipment, advertising

Skim in the CP: Wilson, G.
Peter. Understanding the Statement
of Cash Flows. Boston, MA: Harvard
Business School Publishing, 1992.
Note No. 9-193-027.

8
Matching
Principle for
PP&E

Bruns Jr., William J., and Eric J.
Petro. Depreciation at Delta and
Pan Am (A). Boston, MA: Harvard
Business School Publishing, 1993.
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LEC # TOPICS READINGS

Case No. 9-190-035.

9
Statement of
Cash Flow

Pratt: Chap. 14

Intel: Cash flow statement

CP: Wilson, G. Peter. Understanding
the Statement of Cash Flows.
Boston, MA: Harvard Business
School Publishing, 1992. Note No.
9-193-027.

10
Additional
Discussion of
Topics

11
Accounting for
Taxes

Pratt: Appendix 10B

Intel: Provision for income taxes

12
Marketable
Securities

Pratt: Chap. 8 (through p. 332)

Intel: Investments

13

Current
Liabilities /
Long-Term
Debt

Pratt: Chap. 10

Bruns Jr., William J., and Susan S.
Harmeling. Accounting for Frequent
Fliers. Boston, MA: Harvard
Business School Publishing, 1993.
Case No. 9-192-040.

14
Long-Term
Debt

Pratt: Chap. 1 through 484,
Appendix B

Intel: Notes

15
Leases and Off-
Balance Sheet
Financing

Pratt: Chap. 11 (p. 484 to end,
review Appendix B)

16 Introduction to
Cost Concepts

CP: Bruns Jr., William J. Brief
Introduction to Cost Accounting.
Boston, MA: Harvard Business
School Publishing, 1993. Note No.
9-192-068.
CP: Bruns Jr., William J. Activity
Accounting--Another Way to
Measure Costs. Boston, MA:
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LEC # TOPICS READINGS

Harvard Business School Publishing,
1993. Note No. 9-193-044.

17
Activity-Based
Costing

CP: Cooper, Robin, and Karen H.
Wruck. Siemens Electric Motor
Works (A): Process-Oriented
Costing. Boston, MA: Harvard
Business School Publishing, 1993.
Case No. 9-189-089.

18
Moving Beyond
ABC

CP: Kaplan, Robert S. One Cost
System Isn't Enough. Boston,
MA: Harvard Business Review,
1988.
CP: Cooper, Robin, Peter B.B.
Turney, and Christopher
Ittner. Seligram Inc.: Electronic
Testing Operations. Boston, MA:
Harvard Business School Publishing,
1993. Case No. 9-189-084.

19

Managerial
Accounting and
Financial
Reporting

CP: Merchant, Kenneth A., and
Lourdes Ferreira. Scovill Inc.:
NuTone Housing Group. Boston,
MA: Harvard Business School
Publishing, 1993. Case No. 9-186-
136.

20 Wrap-up
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---------------- ----------------

---------------- ----------------

---------------- ----------------

---------------- ----------------

---------------- ----------------

---------------- ----------------

---------------- ----------------

---------------- ----------------

----------------

---------------- ----------------

---------------- ----------------

---------------- ----------------

---------------- ----------------

---------------- ----------------

----------------

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
TOOTSIE ROLL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(in thousands)

 CURRENT ASSETS:
 Cash and cash equivalents..................... 

   Investments...................................  
Accounts receivable trade, less allowances of 

$2,147 and $2,032..................... 

Other receivables............................. 

Inventories:


   Finished goods and work-in-process............

 Raw materials and supplies.................... 


   Prepaid expenses..............................  

Deferred income taxes......................... 


   Total current assets..........................  


PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, at cost:
 Land......................................... 
Buildings.................................... 
Machinery and equipment...................... 

   Less--Accumulated depreciation..............  


OTHER ASSETS:
 Intangible assets, net of accumulated 

amortization of $26,917 and $23,497.. 
Investments................................. 

2000 

$ 	 60,882 

71,605 


23,568 
1,230 

24,984 
16,906 
2,685 
1,351 

203,211 

8,327  
36,937 
183,858 

229,122 
98,004 

131,118 

121,263 
62,548 

   Cash surrender value of life insurance and other

 December 31,

 assets............................... 


CURRENT LIABILITIES:

 Accounts payable........................... 

Dividends payable.......................... 

Accrued liabilities........................ 

Income taxes payable....................... 


Total current liabilities.................. 


NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
   Deferred income taxes......................  

Postretirement health care and life insurance
 benefits........................... 

Industrial development bonds............... 
Deferred compensation and other liabilities. 

Total noncurrent liabilities............... 


SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
   Common stock, $.69-4/9 par value--
   120,000 and 120,000 shares authorized--
   32,986 and 32,854, respectively, issued....  
   Class B common stock, $.69-4/9 par value--
   40,000 and 40,000 shares authorized--

16,056 and 15,707, respectively, issued.... 
   Capital in excess of par value.............  

Retained earnings ......................... 
Accumulated other comprehensive earnings (loss) 

   Treasury stock (at cost)...................  

44,302 

                                                      228,113  

$562,442 
================ 

$ 10,296 
3,436 
33,336 
10,378 

57,446 

12,422 

6,956 

7,500 

19,422 


46,300 

22,907 

11,150 

256,698 

180,123 

(10,190) 

(1,992) 

458,696 

$562,442 

1999 

$ 88,504
71,002

19,032
 5,716

20,689
14,396
3,124
2,069 

224,532 

7,981

30,330

145,789


184,100

88,203


95,897 

85,137
87,167

36,683 

208,987 

$529,416
================ 

$ 12,845

3,035

31,945

8,284


56,109 

9,520

6,557
 7,500
19,084 

42,661 

22,815

10,908

249,236

158,619

(8,940)
(1,992) 

430,646 

$529,416 
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---------------- ---------------- ----------------

---------------- ---------------- ----------------

---------------- ---------------- ----------------

---------------- ---------------- ----------------

---------------- ---------------- ----------------

---------------- ---------------- ----------------

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OFEARNINGS, 

TOOTSIE ROLL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(in thousands except per share data)

 For the year ended December 31,

 2000 1999 1998 

Net sales.............................. 
Cost of goods sold..................... 

$427,054 
207,100 

$396,750 
192,561 

$388,659
187,617 

Gross margin........................... 219,954 204,189 201,042 

Selling, marketing and administrative
 expenses............................. 

         Provision for bad debts ...............  
105,440 

365 
96,694 

270 
97,783

288
 Amortization of intangible assets...... 3,420 2,706 2,706 

Earnings from operations............... 
         Other income, net......................  

110,729 
7,079 

104,519 
6,928 

101,265
4,798 

         Earnings before income taxes...........  
Provision for income taxes............. 

117,808 
42,071 

111,447 
40,137 

106,063
38,537 

Net earnings........................... $ 75,737 $ 71,310 $ 67,526
 ================ ================ ================ 
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----------------

----------------

----------------

--

---------------- ----------------

---------------- ----------------

--
--

--

---------------- ----------------

---------------- ----------------

---------------- ----------------

----------------

----------------

----------------

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
TOOTSIE ROLL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(in thousands)

 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
 Net earnings....................... 

             Adjustments to reconcile net
 earnings to net cash provided
 by operating activities:
 Depreciation and
 amortization................. 
(Gain) loss on retirement of
 fixed assets................. 
Changes in operating assets and

                   liabilities, excluding
 acquisitions:
 Accounts receivable........ 
Other receivables.......... 
Inventories................ 
Prepaid expenses and other
 assets................... 
Accounts payable and
 accrued liabilities...... 
Income taxes payable and
 deferred................. 
Postretirement health care
 and life insurance
 benefits................. 

Deferred compensation and
 other liabilities........ 
Other...................... 

Net cash provided by operating
 activities....................... 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
 Acquisitions of businesses, net of
 cash acquired.................... 
Capital expenditures............... 
Purchase of held to maturity
 securities....................... 
Maturity of held to maturity
 securities....................... 
Purchase of available for sale
 securities....................... 

Sale and maturity of available for
 sale securities.................. 

Net cash used in investing
 activities....................... 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
 Issuance of notes payable.......... 
Repayments of notes payable........ 
Treasury stock purchases........... 
Shares repurchased and retired..... 
Dividends paid in cash............. 

Net cash used in financing
 activities....................... 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
 equivalents.......................... 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
 of year.............................. 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
 year................................. 

For the year ended December 31,
 2000 

$75,737 

13,314 

(46) 

(4,460) 
4,486 
(768) 

(7,903) 

(1,717) 

5,691 

399 

337 
(189) 

84,881 

(74,293) 
(16,189) 

(156,322) 

176,576 

(78,993) 

82,754 

(66,467) 

43,625 
(43,625) 

(32,945) 
(13,091) 

(46,036) 

(27,622) 

88,504 

$60,882 
================ 

1999 

$71,310 

9,979 

(43) 

400 
(2,392) 
1,592 

(15,672) 

968 

2,232 

412 

4,162 
(13) 

72,935 

(20,283) 

(238,949) 

235,973 

(117,694) 

113,960 

(26,993) 

(1,019) 
(25,850) 
(11,313) 

(38,182) 

7,760 

80,744 

$88,504 
================ 
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WILLIAM WRIGLEY JR 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
In thousands of dollars

ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Short-term investments, at amortized cost  
Accounts receivable 
(less allowance for doubtful accounts: 2000 - $8,186; 1999 - $9,194)  
Inventories
 Finished goods 

 Raw materials and supplies                                              


Other current assets 
Deferred income taxes - current                                           
Total current assets 

Marketable equity securities, at fair value  
Deferred charges and other assets 
Deferred income taxes - noncurrent  

Property, plant and equipment, at cost: 
Land 
Buildings and building equipment 
Machinery and equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Net property, plant and equipment 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable  
Accrued expenses 
Dividends payable 
Income and other taxes payable 
Deferred income taxes - current                                           
Total current liabilities 

Deferred income taxes - noncurrent  
Other noncurrent liabilities 

Stockholders' equity: 

Common Stock - no par value
 Common Stock
 Authorized: 400,000 shares
 Issued: 2000 - 94,184 shares; 1999 - 93,607 shares  
 Class B Common Stock - convertible
 Authorized: 80,000 shares
 Issued and outstanding:
 2000 - 22,037 shares; 1999 - 22,614 shares  
Additional paid-in capital  
Retained earnings 
Common Stock in treasury, at cost
 (2000 - 3,459 shares; 1999 - 1,725 shares)  
Accumulated other comprehensive income
 Foreign currency translation adjustment  
Unrealized holding gains on marketable equity securities 

Total stockholders' equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

2000 1999 

$ 300,599 288,386 
29,301  18,528 

191,570 181,720 

64,676 60,885
188,615 196,785

 253,291 257,670 

39,728  42,301 
14,226 15,141
828,715 803,746 

28,535 43,201 
83,713 114,796 
26,743 26,862 

39,125 
344,457 
756,050


1,139,632 


37,527 
312,663 
712,585

1,062,775 

532,598 503,635 
607,034 559,140 

$1,574,740 1,547,745 

$ 94,377 86,583 
92,531 74,816 
39,467 40,073 
60,976 49,654 

859  699
 288,210 251,825

40,144 44,963 
113,489 112,182 

12,558 12,481

2,938 

346 


1,492,547 


3,015 
273 

1,322,137 

(256,478) (125,712) 

(136,365) 

17,351


(119,014) 


(100,270)
26,851
(73,419)

1,132,897 1,138,775

$ 1,574,740 $1,547,745 
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-- --

WILLIAM WRIGLEY JR 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS 
In thousands of dollars except for per share amounts

 2000 
EARNINGS 

Net sales $ 2,145,706 

Cost of sales 904,266 

Gross profit 1,241,440 

Selling and general administrative  778,197 

Gain related to factory sale 

Operating income 463,243 

Investment income 19,185 

Other expense (3,116) 

Earnings before income taxes 479,312 

Income taxes 150,370 

Net earnings $ 328,942 

1999 

2,061,602  

904,183 

1,157,419 

721,813 

435,606 

17,636 

(8,812) 

444,430 

136,247 

308,183 

1998 

2,004,719 

894,988 

1,109,731 

687,747 

(10,404) 

432,388 

18,636 

(10,145) 

440,879 

136,378 

304,501 
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-- --

WILLIAM WRIGLEY JR 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
In thousands of dollars

 2000 1999 1998 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net earnings $ 328,942 308,183 304,501
 Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash
 provided by operating activities:
 Depreciation 57,880 61,225 55,774
 (Gain) Loss on sales of retired property, plant and equipment 778 390 168
 Gain related to factory sale (10,404)
 (Increase) Decrease in:
 Accounts receivable (18,483) (21,174) (12,297)
 Inventories (2,812) (9,894)  (6,299)
 Other current assets 199 2,807 1,310
 Other assets and deferred charges 30,408 (22,277) (17,350)
 Increase (Decrease) in:
 Accounts payable 11,068 13,519 4,499
 Accrued expenses 19,935 9,734 (3,869)
 Income and other taxes payable 14,670 2,649 (4,445)
 Deferred income taxes 2,546 2,024 9,826
 Other noncurrent liabilities 3,152 10,850 2,433 

Net cash provided by operating activities 448,283 358,036 323,847 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
 Additions to property, plant and equipment (107,680) (127,733) (148,027)
  Proceeds from property retirements  1,128 7,909 10,662
  Purchases of short-term investments  (143,116) (32,078) (109,292)
  Maturities of short-term investments               115,007 150,300 92,676 

Net cash used in investing activities (134,661) (1,602) (153,981) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 Dividends paid (159,138)  (153,812) (150,835)
 Common Stock purchased (131,765) (121,268) (7,679) 

Net cash used in financing activities (290,903) (275,080) (158,514) 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  (10,506) (7,540) (3,407) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 12,213 73,814 7,945 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 288,386 214,572 206,627 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 300,599 288,386 214,572 
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15.514 
 

Mid-term Examination Solutions 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Name: __________________________________________________ 
   
 
About the exam: 
 

1. The exam consists of  
a. The exam questions 
b. 5-page supplement with financial statements. 

2. There are 87 points in total -- point allocations are stated for each question.   
3. Difficult questions are not necessarily worth more.  Therefore, be sure not to 

spend too much time on any one question.  If you have trouble on a question 
come back to it later. 

4. Please write your answers in the space provided, and show any supporting 
computations you make.  

5. Please write as legibly as possible -- we can’t grade what we can’t read! 
6. If a question is unclear, make an appropriate assumption that does not contradict 

any information given in the question. 
7. This exam must be completed in 1 hour and 30 minutes. 
 

 

 1
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QUESTION 1:  TRANSACTIONS AND STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (40 points, 8 points each) 
 
For each event in (1) – (5): 
 
(a)  Record the transaction (if necessary) using either the balance sheet equation or journal entries.  Be specific about account names.  Be sure 

to label each account as Asset (A), Liability (L), or Equity (E).  Equity (E) includes income statement items (i.e. revenue and expense 
accounts). 

 
(b) Indicate the effect of each transaction on the Statement of Cash Flows (SCF).  Specify which section(s) of the SCF the transaction affects 

(Operating, Investing, or Financing).  Use the indirect method for the Operating section (i.e., start with Net Income and reconcile to Cash 
from Operations).  If there is no effect on the SCF, write “no effect”. 

 
(c) Ignore taxes 
 
 
The first event is given as an example. 
 

Event/Transaction Statement of Cash Flows 

Example:  Recognize $8,000 of SG&A expense, of which $2,500 is paid. 
 
 

 
Operating Section 
 
 

 

 2
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Event/Transaction 

 
Statement of Cash Flows 

(1) Insurance Premium of $400 for two years is paid in advance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(2) Insurance expense for the first year [See (1)] is recognized. 
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Event/Transaction 

 
Statement of Cash Flows 

(3)  Long-term debt of $50,000 is paid off. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(4) The company buys equipment worth $4 million by paying $1 million cash and 
signing a 10-year note payable for $3 million. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(5)  The company sells $50,000 of goods that cost $32,000.  Cash sales account for 
$20,000 of the total sales. 
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For Q2-Q4, you need to refer to the financial statements and relevant notes for Dow 
Jones & Company.   
 
Question 2: (12 points) 
 
a. In Schedule II of the financial statements, Dow Jones provided detailed 

information on information related to Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.  Based 
on the schedule, what is the Bad debt expense for Dow Jones in 2001 (1 point)? 

                          
 
 
 
 
 
b. Show the Balance Sheet Equation effects (or a journal entry) to record Dow 

Jone’s bad debt expense (2 points). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c. Show the Balance sheet equation effects (or a journal entry) to record Dow Jones’ 

recovery of accounts that were previously written off and the cash receipt  (2 
points). 

 
 

 
 
 
d. Estimate the total amount of cash Dow Jones received from customers from sales 

and the collection of accounts receivable during the fiscal 2001 (7 points). [Hint:  
check Dow Jones’s current liabilities] 
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Question 3 (22 points): 
 
The following footnote appears in Dow Jones 2001 10-K:  
 

Newsprint Inventories is stated at the lower of cost or 
market.  The cost of newsprint is computed by the last-
in, first-out (LIFO) method.  If newsprint inventory 
had been valued by the average cost method, it would 
have been approximately $7.5 million and $9.7 million 
higher in 2001 and 2000, respectively.   

 
Assume the average cost method and FIFO yield insignificant differences in the ending 
inventory value. 
 
a. If Dow Jones were to use the average cost method, what would be their ending 

inventory newsprint inventory balance on 31 December 2001(2 points)? 
 
 
 
 
 
b. If Dow Jones had always used the average cost method would they report higher 

or lower income in fiscal 2001?  By how much (3 points)?    
 
 
 

 
c. A competitor in the publishing industry uses average cost to value their inventory.  

The competitor’s inventory turnover ratio (i.e., CoGS/Average Inventory) was 12 
times in 2001.  Was Dow Jones more or less efficient in managing their inventory 
compared to the competitor (6 points)? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
d. Assume Dow Jones had $1 million of newsprint spoiled by a flood.  How would 

you use the Balance Sheet Equation to recognize this reduction in inventory value 
(2 points)? (Ignore taxes) 

 
 
 
 
 

 6

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

271
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



e. Assume that “Accounts payable – trade” arise only to purchases of newsprint.  
How much cash did Dow Jones pay to its newsprint suppliers in fiscal 2001 (5 
points)? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f. Assume that Dow Jones had expensed amounts related to “Prepaid expenses” as 

soon as cash was paid in the current and all prior years. 
 

a. How much higher/lower would fiscal 2001 net income be under this new 
accounting method (Ignore taxes)(2 points)? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

b. How much higher/lower would retained earnings be on December 31, 2001 
under this new accounting method (Ignore taxes)(2 points)? 
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Question 4 (13 points):
a. How much was Dow Jones’ depreciation expense?  Where did you find the info 

(1 point)? 
 
 
 
b. What was the value of PPE acquired for cash in fiscal 2001 (1 point)? 
 
 
 
c. Use the Balance Sheet Equation (or a journal entry) to record the gain on disposal 

of PPE (7 points). 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
d. If in the beginning of 2001 Dow Jones decided to lengthen the estimated useful 

life for some of its PPE.  What effect would this have on the fiscal 2001 income?  
On the 31 December 2001 balance sheet (2 points)? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e. Note the “Contract guarantees, net” charge on the 2001 income statement.  What 

was the effect of this charge on operating cash flow (2 points)? 
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15.514 Quiz 

1.	 Marketable Securities 
The following information relates to the investment securities held by Trimex Corporation.  
The abbreviations used in the chart are HTM (Held to Maturity Securities), TR (Trading 
Securities), and AFS (Available for Sale Securities). 

Market Value as of 12/31 
Acquisition Acquisition 

Security Date Cost Date Sold Selling Price 2001 2002 2003 
A (HTM) 3/13/01 $35,000 - - $38,000 $30,000 $33,000 

B (TR) 6/24/01 65,000 5/27/03 $70,000 60,000 67,000 -
C (AFS) 10/3/01 100,000 6/30/03 105,000 102,000 98,000 -

Trimex closes its books on December 31 each year. Assume a tax rate of 40%. 

Required: 

What is the effect on net income, other equity, and deferred taxes at the end of each year for 

the three securities? 


2.	 Long-term Liabilities 
MITCO issued $40 million of bonds with an annual coupon rate of 5% many years ago at par.  
The bonds now have 20 years until scheduled maturity. Because market interest rates have 
risen to 9%, the market value of the bonds has dropped to 63% of par. MITCO has $5 million 
of other debt and $35 million of shareholders' equity in addition to the $40 million of 
long-term debt in its financial structure.  The reported income of MITCO for the year is 
expected to be $10 million in the absence of any other actions.  The CFO of MITCO proposes 
the company issue at par new 9% bonds to mature in 20 years and use the proceeds to retire 
the outstanding bond issue. Assume that such action is taken and that any gain on bond 
retirement is taxable immediately, at the rate of 40%. 

Required: 
a)	 Show the effects using the Balance Sheet Equation for the issue of new bonds and the 

retirement of the old bonds.  Ignore income taxes related to the retirement of the bond 
when calculating the value of the new bonds. That is, the amount of new bonds issued 
should be equal to the market value of the bonds repurchased. 

b) What is the effect on income for the year? Give both dollar and percentage amounts. 
c) What is MITCO’s debt-equity ratio before and after the transaction? 

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

274
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



3. Leases 
Excerpts from Duane Reade’s Notes to Financial Statements: 

10. Capital Lease Obligations
As of December 29, 2001, the present value of capital lease obligations was $1.0 million. 
Such obligations are payable in monthly installments and bear interest at an average rate of 
10.8%. At December 29, 2001, the aggregate maturities of capitalized lease obligations are as 
follows (in thousands): 

2002 $ 820

2003 176


$ 996


15. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases: Duane Reade leases all of its store facilities under operating lease agreements 
expiring on various dates through the year 2024. In addition to minimum rentals, certain 
leases provide for annual increases based upon real estate tax increases, maintenance cost 
increases and inflation. 
Rent expense, including deferred rent, real estate taxes and other rent-related costs and 
income for the fiscal years ended December 29, 2001, December 30, 2000 and December 25, 
1999 was $84,044,000, $69,685,000 and $59,535,000, respectively. 
Minimum annual cash rent obligations under non-cancelable operating leases at December 
29, 2001 (including obligations under new store leases entered into but not opened as of 
December 29, 2001) are as follows (in thousands): 

2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 to 2024 

Total 

$ 85,882 
88,524 
86,302 
86,000 
82,954 

602,960 

$1,032,622 

(PV: $218,684)


To simplify your calculation, the present value of the lease obligation from 2007 to 2024 as 
of 12/29/2001 is given as $218,684. 

Required: 
By how much will long-term liabilities increase if Duane Reade were to begin reporting the 
operating leases as capital leases? (Use an interest rate of 10.8%) 
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Question 1 (40 points --- 8 points each) 

For each event in (1) – (5): 
(a) 	 Record the transactions (if necessary) using either the balance sheet equation or the journal 

entry approach. Be specific about account names. Be sure to label each account as Asset 
(A) , Liability (L), or Equity (E). Equity (E) includes income statement items (i.e. revenue 
and expense accounts). 

(b) Indicate the effect of the transactions on the Indirect Cash Flow Statement (start with net 
income and reconcile to Cash from Operations).  Specify whether it affects the operating, 
investing or financing section and indicate the net cash effects of each section affected by the 
transaction. If there is no effect, write “no effect”. 

The first event is given as example. 

Event/Transaction Statement of Cash Flows 

Example: Recognize $8,000 of SG&A expense, of which $2,500 is paid. 
Operating Section 

Cash (A) = Accrued Expenses (L) + Ret. Earnings (E) Net Income fl $8,000. 
-2,500  + 5,500 -8,000 

Add back $5,500 (increase in Accrued 
or Liabilities) 

Dr: 	SG&A Expense (E) 8,000 
Net cash flow effect = -$2,500. Cr: Cash (A) 2,500


 Accrued Expenses (L) 5,500
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Event/Transactions Statement of Cash Flows 

(a) The company receives $50,000 cash for orders which will be delivered during the 
next fiscal year. The company acquires $30,000 inventory on account to fill the order. 

(b) The company delivers the all of the goods ordered in (a).  

(c) Warehouse flooding ruins $5,000 of inventory which is thrown away. No provision 
had been made for damaged inventory. 
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Event/Transactions Statement of Cash Flows 

(d) The company rents office space for one year, paying the entire year’s rent of $12,000 
in advance and recognizing the first month’s rental expense. 

(e) The company borrows $15,000 from the bank and purchases office equipment for 
$10,000 cash 
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Question 2: Accounts Receivable (16 Points) 

The following is an excerpt from the 10-K of Tootsie Roll Industries Inc.: 

Tootsie Roll Industries, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (the 
"Company") have been engaged in the manufacture and sale of candy for over 100 
years. This is the only industry segment in which the Company operates and is 
its only line of business. The majority of the Company's products are sold under 
the registered trademarks TOOTSIE ROLL, TOOTSIE ROLL POPS, CHILD'S PLAY, CARAMEL 
APPLE POPS, CHARMS, BLOW-POP, BLUE RAZZ, ZIP-A-DEE-DOO-DA POPS, CELLA'S, MASON 
DOTS, MASON CROWS, JUNIOR MINT, CHARLESTON CHEW, SUGAR DADDY, SUGAR BABIES, 
ANDES AND FLUFFY STUFF. 

Please refer to the financial statements for Tootsie Roll for additional information. Assume all 
sales are on account and there are no deferred revenues. 

a. (3 points) What is the gross amount of Tootsie Roll's accounts receivable at the end of 2000? 

b. (4 points) What percentage of these receivables does management estimate to be 
uncollectible? How does this compare with 1999? 
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c.	 (5 points) Using the balance sheet equation format or journal entries, reconstruct the 
transactions for (a) bad debt expense and (b) the actual write-offs of uncollectible accounts 
for the year ended December 31, 2000.  

d. (4 points) Estimate the amount of cash Tootsie Roll collected from customers in 2000. 
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Question 3: Inventory (15 points) 

Please refer to the financial statements for Tootsie Roll for additional information. The 
following footnote appears in Tootsie Roll’s 2000 10K: 

INVENTORIES:

 Inventories are stated at cost, not in excess of market. The cost of 
inventories ($37,505 and $29,111 at December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively) 
has been determined by the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method. The excess of 
current cost over LIFO cost of inventories approximates $2,993 and $5,008 at 
December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. 

a.	 (3 points) What is the 2000 LIFO reserve? 

b. (4 points) Did Tootsie Roll experience inflation or deflation in raw materials costs during 
2000? Provide evidence in support of your answer. 

c.	 (8 points) Compute Tootsie Roll's inventory turnover (COGS / Average Inventory) in 
2000 under LIFO. Compute inventory turnover under FIFO. Which measure gives the 
more accurate economic picture of Tootsie Roll’s performance? Why? 
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Question 4: Long-Lived Assets (14 points) 

The following is an excerpt from the 10-K of William Wrigley Jr. Co’s for 2000: 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Wm. Wrigley Jr. 

Company and its associated companies (the Company). The Company's principal 

business is manufacturing and selling chewing gum. All other businesses constitute 

less than 10% of combined revenues, operating profit and identifiable assets.


Please refer to Wrigley’s balance sheet, statement of operations, and statement of cash when answering 
the following questions. 

a.	 (3 points) What was the gain or loss associated with the sale of property, plant and equipment in 
2000?  Be sure to specify whether it was a gain or a loss. 

b.	 (3 points) Record the transaction (you may use either the balance sheet equation format or 
journal entries) for the depreciation of property, plant and equipment for Wrigley for 2000? 

c.	 (8 points) In addition to selling PP&E, Wrigley purchased some PP&E.  Record the transactions 
for (a) the purchase and (b) sale of retired PP&E. There were no non-cash purchases in 2000. 
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Question 5: Miscellaneous (15 points) 

Please refer to both Tootsie Roll’s and Wrigley’s financial statements when answering the following 
questions. 

a.	 (6 points) Calculate the components of return on assets (using the formulas below) for 
Tootsie Roll and Wrigley for 2000. Use ending balances (vs. average balances) for the 
balance sheet accounts. 

ROA = Profitability x Asset Turnover 

Net Income  = Net Income x Sales 
Assets Sales Assets 

Tootsie Roll ____________ ____________ ____________ 

Wrigley ____________ ____________ ____________ 

b.	 (3 points) Which company generates higher returns from its assets? What is the source of the 
higher returns? 

(This question continues on the following page.) 
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c.	 (6 points) Suppose it is determined in 2001 that Junior Mints cause amnesia in MBA students. 
Tootsie Roll must reduce the value of intangible assets (the Junior Mints brand name) by $20 
million. What would be the effect on each of the following ratios (increase, decrease, no effect)? 

i. Quick Ratio [(Cash + AR + Inventory) / Current Liabilities] 

ii. Return on Equity (Net Income / Shareholders’ Equity) 

iii. Debt / Total Assets 
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15.514 
 

Mid-term Examination Solutions 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Name: __________________________________________________ 
   
 
About the exam: 
 

1. The exam consists of  
a. The exam questions 
b. 5-page supplement with financial statements. 

2. There are 87 points in total -- point allocations are stated for each question.   
3. Difficult questions are not necessarily worth more.  Therefore, be sure not to 

spend too much time on any one question.  If you have trouble on a question 
come back to it later. 

4. Please write your answers in the space provided, and show any supporting 
computations you make.  

5. Please write as legibly as possible -- we can’t grade what we can’t read! 
6. If a question is unclear, make an appropriate assumption that does not contradict 

any information given in the question. 
7. This exam must be completed in 1 hour and 30 minutes. 
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QUESTION 1:  TRANSACTIONS AND STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (40 points, 8 points each) 
 
For each event in (1) – (5): 
 
(a)  Record the transaction (if necessary) using either the balance sheet equation or journal entries.  Be specific about account names.  Be sure 

to label each account as Asset (A), Liability (L), or Equity (E).  Equity (E) includes income statement items (i.e. revenue and expense 
accounts). 

 
(b) Indicate the effect of each transaction on the Statement of Cash Flows (SCF).  Specify which section(s) of the SCF the transaction affects 

(Operating, Investing, or Financing).  Use the indirect method for the Operating section (i.e., start with Net Income and reconcile to Cash 
from Operations).  If there is no effect on the SCF, write “no effect”. 

 
(c) Ignore taxes 
 
 
The first event is given as an example. 
 

Event/Transaction Statement of Cash Flows 

Example:  Recognize $8,000 of SG&A expense, of which $2,500 is paid. 
 
Cash (A) =  Accrued Expenses (L) + Ret. Earnings (E)
-2,500              + 5,500                          -8,000 
 

 
Operating Section 
Net Income ↓ $8,000. 
 
Add back $5,500  
      (increase in Accrued Liabilities)  
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Event/Transaction 

 
Statement of Cash Flows 

(1) Insurance Premium of $400 for two years is paid in advance. 
 
Cash(A) + Pre-paid Expense(A) = (L) + (E) 
-400                400 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Operating Section
Changes in other assets                               -400 
Increase in prepaid expense 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(2) Insurance expense for the first year [See (1)] is recognized. 
 
 
 
               
 Pre-paid Expense(A)  = (L) + (E) 
         -200                         -200 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Operating Section 
Net Income                                             -200 
Decrease in prepaid expense:              +200 
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Event/Transaction 

 
Statement of Cash Flows 

(3)  Long-term debt of $50,000 is paid off. 
 
   Cash(A)           =            Long-term debt (L) + (E) 
 -50,000                                -50,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Financing Section 
Reduction in Long-term debt               -50,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(4) The company buys equipment worth $4 million by paying $1 million cash and 
signing a 10-year note payable for $3 million. 

 

   Cash (A)     +   Equipment (A)      =  Long-term debt (L)+ (E)   

  -1m                           4m                                    3m 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Investing Section 
Additions to Plant and property        -1m 
 
 
 
 

(5)  The company sells $50,000 of goods that cost $32,000.  Cash sales account for 
$20,000 of the total sales. 
 

Cash(A)   +    Inventory(A)  +  A/R(A)       =  A/P (L) +   RE(E) 
  20,000            -32,000              30,000                  18,000 

      
 
 

Operating Section 
Net Income                                         18,000 
Changes in A/P                                 -30,000 
Changes in Inventory                         32,000 
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For Q2-Q4, you need to refer to the financial statements and relevant notes for Dow 
Jones & Company.   
 
Question 2: (12 points) 
 
a. In Schedule II of the financial statements, Dow Jones provided detailed 

information on information related to Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.  Based 
on the schedule, what is the Bad debt expense for Dow Jones in 2001 (1 point)? 

                          
$6,395 

 
b. Show the Balance Sheet Equation effects (or a journal entry) to record Dow 

Jone’s bad debt expense (2 points). 
 
 
               A/R (A)        - ADA (A)      =   (L) +      R/E(E)  
                                        6,395                               -6,395 
 
 
c. Show the Balance sheet equation effects (or a journal entry) to record Dow Jones’ 

recovery of accounts that were previously written off and the cash receipt  (2 
points). 

 
                                  Cash(A)    A/R(A)    -   ADA(A) = (L) + (E) 
Cash Receipt              1,055        -1,055          
Recovery        1,055 1,055   
 
 
d. Estimate the total amount of cash Dow Jones received from customers from sales 

and the collection of accounts receivable during the fiscal 2001 (7 points). [Hint:  
check Dow Jones’s current liabilities] 

 
 
                                                                                             Unearned  
                                                                                              Revenue 
  Cash  A/R (A)  -ADA(A) = (L) + RE(E) 
BB    242,661  6,377       
Sales                1,773,083              1,773,083 
BD      6,395     -6,395 
Write Off   -8217  -8217 
Recovery    1055  1055 
∆ URev             -8289  8289 
Cash Collected  1,832,124 -1,832,124 
EB    168,169  5,610 
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Question 3 (22 points): 
 
The following footnote appears in Dow Jones 2001 10-K:  
 

Newsprint Inventories is stated at the lower of cost or 
market.  The cost of newsprint is computed by the last-
in, first-out (LIFO) method.  If newsprint inventory 
had been valued by the average cost method, it would 
have been approximately $7.5 million and $9.7 million 
higher in 2001 and 2000, respectively.   

 
Assume the average cost method and FIFO yield insignificant differences in the ending 
inventory value. 
 
a. If Dow Jones were to use the average cost method, what would be their ending 

inventory newsprint inventory balance on 31 December 2001(2 points)? 
 

7,500,00 + 10,810,000 = $18,310,000 
 
b. If Dow Jones had always used the average cost method would they report higher 

or lower income in fiscal 2001?  By how much (3 points)?    
 
Reserve ↓    Cogs ↑   Income ↓ 
 
$9.7m - $7.5m = $2.2m lower 
 
Pre-tax Income $2.2 lower 
10% tax rate   $2.2 * (1-.1) = $1.98m after tax income 
 

c. A competitor in the publishing industry uses average cost to value their inventory.  
The competitor’s inventory turnover ratio (i.e., CoGS/Average Inventory) was 12 
times in 2001.  Was Dow Jones more or less efficient in managing their inventory 
compared to the competitor (6 points)? 
COGS (AC) =                 150,791,000 + 2,200,000

 Aug. Inv (AC)     [18,310,000+(13,109,000 + 9,700,000)]/2 
 
           =  152, 991,000    =  7.4 
                                       20,559,500 
 Dow Jones is less efficient 
 

d. Assume Dow Jones had $1 million of newsprint spoiled by a flood.  How would 
you use the Balance Sheet Equation to recognize this reduction in inventory value 
(2 points)? (Ignore taxes) 

 
Inventory (A) = (L) +      RE (E)

   -1,000,000              -1,000,000  
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e. Assume that “Accounts payable – trade” arise only to purchases of newsprint.  
How much cash did Dow Jones pay to its newsprint suppliers in fiscal 2001 (5 
points)? 

 
   Cash  Inventory  A/P  RE
             13,109   66,699 

 148,492**  148,492 
     (150,791)    (150,791) 

(153,612)    153,612*
     10,810   61,579 

*cash paid to suppliers 
**purchases (solve for this number firms) 

 
f. Assume that Dow Jones had expensed amounts related to “Prepaid expenses” as 

soon as cash was paid in the current and all prior years. 
 

a. How much higher/lower would fiscal 2001 net income be under this new 
accounting method (Ignore taxes)(2 points)? 

 
2001 had a reduction in PPExpenses → Net income would be higher by 
18,105,000 – 13,877,000 = $4,228,000 

 
 

b. How much higher/lower would retained earnings be on December 31, 2001 
under this new accounting method (Ignore taxes)(2 points)? 

 
Retained earnings would be lower by $13,877,000 
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Question 4 (13 points):
a. How much was Dow Jones’ depreciation expense?  Where did you find the info 

(1 point)? 
 

$102,597,000, statement of cash flows 
 
b. What was the value of PPE acquired for cash in fiscal 2001 (1 point)? 
 

$128,759,000 
 
c. Use the Balance Sheet Equation (or a journal entry) to record the gain on disposal 

of PPE (7 points). 
 

(Thousands) Cash  PPE  Acc Dep = (L) + RE(E)
   
             BB   1,625,479 864,616 
          ADD -128,759  128,759 
         DEPR     102,597    -102,597 
            WRITE OFF     24,186    -24,186 
              DISPOSAL 2,239  81,045  79,555    749
                           EB   1,679,193 911,844    
 
 
d. If in the beginning of 2001 Dow Jones decided to lengthen the estimated useful 

life for some of its PPE.  What effect would this have on the fiscal 2001 income?  
On the 31 December 2001 balance sheet (2 points)? 

 
Reported income ↑ less depreciation expense. 
 
Net PPE higher.  Net PPE would decrease at a slower rate. 

 
e. Note the “Contract guarantees, net” charge on the 2001 income statement.  What 

was the effect of this charge on operating cash flow (2 points)? 
 

No effect on operating cash flow because reduction in net income is 
reversed as net income is reconciled to cash 
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15.514 Quiz Solution 
 
1. Marketable Securities (18 points, 6 points for each part) 

The following information relates to the investment securities held by Trimex Corporation.  The 
abbreviations used in the chart are HTM (Held to Maturity Securities), TR (Trading Securities), and 
AFS (Available for Sale Securities). 
 
             Marketable Value 12/31 

Security 
Acquisition 

Date 
Acquisition 

Cost 
Date 
Sold 

Selling 
Price 2001 2002 2003 

A (HTM) 3/13/01 $35,000 - - $38,000 $30,000 $33,000
B (TR) 6/24/01 65,000 5/27/03 $70,000 60,000 67,000 - 
C (AFS) 10/3/01 100,000 6/30/03 105,000 102,000 98,000 - 
 
Trimex closes its books on December 31 each year. Asume tax rate is 40%. 
 
What’s the net effect on net income, other equity, and deferred tax?  
 
A) HTM - leave at acquisition cost, same amount $35,000 each year. No effect on net income, 

other equity, and deferred tax. 
 
B) TR - mark to market each year. Gain and losses are recorded under retained earnings as part of 

net income.  Other equity account is not affected. 
 
Date Cash Marketable 

Securities 
Adj. To 
M.S. 

= Tax Payable Deferred Tax 
Liability 

Retained 
Earnings  
(Net Income) 

6/24/01 (65,000) 65,000      
12/31/01   (5,000)   (2,000) (3,000) 
12/31/02   7,000   2,800 4,200 
5/27/03 70,000 (65,000) (2,000)  2,000 (800) 1,800 
EB  0 0   0 3,000 

 
C) AFS  
 

Date Cash Marketable 
Securities 

Adj. To 
M.S. 

= Tax 
Payable 

Deferred Tax 
Liability 

Other 
Equity 

R/E  
(Net Income) 

10/3/01 (100,000) 100,000       
12/31/01   2,000   800 1,200  
12/31/02   (4,000)   (1,600) (2,400)  
6/30/03 105,000 (100,000) 2,000  2,000 800 1,200 3,000 
EB  0 0   0 0 3,000 
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2. Long-term Liabilities (20 Points, 10 points for part a, 5 points for part b, 5 points for part c) 
 

a)   $25,200,000 = .63 x $40,000,000 of cash must be raised to retire the old issue.  
Issue of new bonds (dollars in thousands) 

Cash (A) =   Bonds Payable (L) Retained Earnings (SE) 
+25,200 +25,200  

Bonds Payable-9 Percent 
 

(25,200) (40,000) 14,800  
Gain on Bond Retirement 

(5,920)  (5,920) 
=0.40 x $14,800.  
Income Tax Expense 

 
b) Income increases by $8,880,000 [= (1 - .40) x $14,800,000], or by 88% (= 8,800/$10,000) to 

$18.8 million.  Retained earnings increases by $8,880,000. 
 
c) Debt-equity ratio (in thousands):    

 
Before: (5,000 + 40,000)/35,000 = 1.29 
After:  (5,000 + 25,200)/(35,000 + 8,880) = 30,200/43,800 = 0. 69 

 
3. Leases (7 points.  No point deducted if fail to deduct the current portion of the liability) 
 

Year Amount Discount Factor Present Value 
2002  85,882  0.9025  77,511  
2003  88,524  0.8146  72,108  
2004  86,302  0.7352  63,446  
2005  86,000  0.6635  57,061  
2006  82,954  0.5988  49,675  
2007    218,684 
 
Present Value of all future payments   538,485  
Less: Current portion     77,511  
Increase in Non Current Liabilities   460,974 
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Event/Transaction Statement of Cash Flows 
a) Receives $50,000 cash for orders which will be delivered during the next fiscal year. Operating Section

The company acquires $30,000 of inventory on acount to fill these orders. Net Income 0 
+ Increase in Adv from Cust. 50,000 

Cash (A)  + Inv (A) = AP  + Adv from Cust. (L) + RE (E)
 +50,000 +30,000 +30,000 +50,000 

+Increase in AP 30,000 
-Increase in Inventory               -30,000 

CFO +50,000 

b) The company delivers all the goods ordered in (1). Operating Section
 Net Income 20,000 

Cash (A)  + Inv (A) = Adv from Cust. (L) + RE (E) 
- 30,000          -50,000  +20,000 

- Increase in Adv from Cust.     -50,000
 +Decrease in Inventory +30,000 

CFO 0 
c) Warehouse flooding ruins $5,000 of inventory which is thrown away. No provision 

had been made for damaged inventory. 

Inventory (A)  = RE (E) 
-5,000                  -5,000 

Operating Section
 Net Income -5,000 

+Decrease in Inventory + 5,000 

CFO 0 
d) The company rents office space for one year, paying the entire year’s rent of $12,000 Operating Section

in advance and recognizing the first month’s rental expense. Net Income -1,000 
- Increase in Prpd. Rent         -11,000 

Cash (A)  + Prepaid Rent (A)  = RE (E) 
-12,000  +11,000 -1,000 CFO -12,000

 e) The company borrows $15,000 from the bank and purchases office equipment for 
$10,000 cash. 

CFO 0 

Cash (A)  + PPE (A)  = Debt(L) 
5,000 +10,000 +15,000 

CFI
 Purchase of PPE -10,000 

CFF
 Borrow +15,000 

Net Cash Flow +5,000 
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Question 2: Accounts Receivable (16 Points) 
The following is an excerpt from the 10-K of Tootsie Roll Industries Inc.: 
Tootsie Roll Industries, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (the 
"Company") have been engaged in the manufacture and sale of candy for over 100 
years. This is the only industry segment in which the Company operates and is 
its only line of business. The majority of the Company's products are sold under 
the registered trademarks TOOTSIE ROLL, TOOTSIE ROLL POPS, CHILD'S PLAY, CARAMEL 
APPLE POPS, CHARMS, BLOW-POP, BLUE RAZZ, ZIP-A-DEE-DOO-DA POPS, CELLA'S, MASON 
DOTS, MASON CROWS, JUNIOR MINT, CHARLESTON CHEW, SUGAR DADDY, SUGAR BABIES, 
ANDES AND FLUFFY STUFF. 

Please refer to the financial statements for Tootsie for additional information. Assume all sales 
are on account and there are no deferred revenues. 

a.	 (3 points) What is the gross amount of Tootsie Roll's accounts receivable at the end of 2000? 

(23,568 + 1,230) + 2,147 = 27,945

we also accepted


23,568 + 2,147 = 25,715 which omitted the “other receivables”


b.	 (4 points) What percentage of these receivables does management estimate to be 
uncollectible?  How does this compare with 1999? 

2000: 2,147 / 25,715 = 8.3%

 1999: 2,032 / (2,032 + 19,032) = 9.6% 

Tootsie Roll has a lower percent of uncollectible accounts in 2000 vs. 1999, therefore 
they believe they will be collecting more receivables. 

c.	 (5 points) Using the balance sheet equation format or journal entries, reconstruct the 
transactions for (a) bad debt expense and (b) the actual write-offs of uncollectible accounts 
for the year ended December 31, 2000. 

A/R -ADA  = R.E. 
-2,032 

(a) -365 -365  (Bad Debt Expense from I/S) 
(b) -250  +250** 

-2,147 

** 2,032 + 365 – 2,147 = 250 

d. (4 points) Estimate the amount of cash Tootsie Roll collected from customers in 2000. 
Using Account Receivable (Gross): 

BB + Sales – Write Offs – EB = Cash Collections 
(19,023 + 2,032) + 427,054 – 250 – (23,568 + 2,147) = 422,153 
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Question 3: Inventory (15 points) 

Please refer to the financial statements for Tootsie Roll for additional information.  The following 
footnote appears in Tootsie Roll’s 2000 10K: 

INVENTORIES:

 Inventories are stated at cost, not in excess of market. The cost of domestic 
inventories ($37,505 and $29,111 at December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively) 
has been determined by the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method. The excess of 
current cost over LIFO cost of inventories approximates $2,993 and $5,008 at 
December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. 

a) (3 points) What is the 2000 LIFO reserve? 

$2,993 

b) (4 points) Did Tootsie Roll experience inflation or deflation in raw materials costs during 
2000? Provide evidence in support of your answer. 

Change in LIFO Reserve = Inflation (Deflation) + Effect of Layer Dipping

(2,993 – 5,008)  = X + 0


x = -2,105  thus deflation 

c) (8 points) Compute Tootsie Roll's inventory turnover (COGS / Average Inventory) in 2000 
under LIFO. Compute inventory turnover under FIFO. Which measure gives the more 
accurate economic picture of Tootsie Roll’s performance?  Why? 

LIFO FIFO 
207,100 207,100 - (2,993 – 5008) = 209,115 
(41,890 + 35,085)/2 (41,890 + 2,993 + 35,085 + 5,008)/2 
= 5.38 = 4.92 

using domestic inventories only: 
LIFO 
207,100 
(37,505 + 29,111)/2 
= 6.22 

FIFO 
207,100 - (2,993 – 5008) = 209,115 
(37,505 + 2,993 + 29,111 + 5,008)/2 
= 5.61 

FIFO is considered a better measure of economic performance because it matches 
somewhat current costs in COGS to current costs in Inventory. LIFO has more distortion 
because it matches current costs in COGS to older costs in Inventory. 
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Question 4: Long-Lived Assets (14 points) 

The following is an excerpt from the 10-K of William Wrigley Jr. Co’s for 2000: 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Wm. Wrigley Jr. 

Company and its associated companies (the Company). The Company's principal 

business is manufacturing and selling chewing gum. All other businesses constitute 

less than 10% of combined revenues, operating profit and identifiable assets.


Please refer to Wrigley’s balance sheet, statement of operations, and statement of cash flows when 
answering the following questions. 

a.	 (3 points) What was the gain or loss associated with the sale of property, plant and equipment in 
2000? Be sure to specify whether it was a gain or a loss. 

$778 loss 

b.	 (3 points) Record the transaction (you may use either the balance sheet equation format or 
journal entries) for the depreciation of property, plant and equipment for Wrigley for 2000? 

PPE (A) - Accum. Depreciation (XA)  = Retained Earnings (E)
 57,880 -57,880 

c.	 (8 points) In addition to selling PP&E, Wrigley purchased some PP&E. Record the transactions 
for (a) the purchase and (b) sale of retired PP&E. There were no non-cash purchases in 2000. 

Cash + PPE - AD = RE 
BB  1,062,775 	 -503,635 

-57,880 

(a) 	-107,680  +107,680 

(b) 1,128 -30,823* +28,917** -778 

EB	  1,139,632 -532,598 

* 1,062,775 + 107,680 – 1,139,632

** -503,635 – 57,880 + 532,598
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Question 5: Miscellaneous (15 points) 

Please refer to both Tootsie Roll’s and Wrigley’s financial statements when answering the following 
questions. 

a.	 (6 points)  Calculate the components of return on assets (using the formulas below) for Tootsie 
Roll and Wrigley for 2000. Use ending balances (vs. average balances) for the balance sheet 
accounts. 

ROA = Profitability x Asset Turnover 

Net Income  = Net Income x Sales 
Assets Sales Assets 

Tootsie Roll 13.5% 0.177 0.759 
75,737 / 562,442 75,737 / 427,054 427,054 / 562,442 

Wrigley 20.9% 0.153 1.36 
328,942 / 1,574,740 328,942 / 2,145,706 2,145,706 / 1,574,740 

b.	 (3 points) Which company generates higher returns from its assets? What is the source of the 
higher returns? 

Wrigley. Though it has lower profit margin (profit per $ of sales), the company 
generates more sales per $ of assets. 

c.	 (6 points) Suppose it is determined in 2001 that Junior Mints cause amnesia in MBA students. 
Tootsie Roll must reduce the value of intangible assets (the Junior Mints brand name) by $20 
million. What would be the effect on each of the following ratios (increase, decrease, no effect)? 

NO EFFECT	 Quick Ratio [(Cash + AR + Inventory) / Current Liabilities] 
(Cash/AR/Inv no effect, Current Liabilities no effect) 

DECREASE	 Return on Equity (Net Income / Shareholders’ Equity)

(NI decrease $20, SE decrease $20)


INCREASE	 Debt / Total Assets

(Debt no effect, Assets decrease $20)
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